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Form of Proxy

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements

This Annwal Report has been prapared for the members of Majedi
Investments PLC (the Company) and no one else The Company Its
Drrectors or agents do not accept or assume responsibility to any other
person in connecton with this document and any such responsibility
or habijty 1s expressty disclaimed

This Annual Report contains certain forward looking statemants with
respect to the pnncipal nsks and uncertanbes facing the Company By
ther nature these statements and forecasts wvolve nsk and uncertanty

pecause they relate lo events and depend on circumstances that may
or may not occur In the future There are & number of factors that
could cause actual results or developments to differ matanally from
those expressed ar iImplied by these forward locking statements and
forecasts The forward locking statements reflect the knowtedge and
information avalable at the date of preparation of thig Annual Report
and wilt not be updated during the year Nothing in this Annual Report
should be construed as a profit forecast




Investment Objective

The Company’s investment objective 1s to maximise total shareholder
return whilst increasing dividends by more than the rate of inflation over
the long term.

Highlights 2015
Total shareholder return (iIncluding dividends): 15.7%

Net asset value total return (debt at
par including dividends): 12.9%

Total dividends (per share) 8.0p

Directors’ valuation of investment
In Majedie Asset Management Limited: £52.3m
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Year's Summary

Group Capital Structure Note 2015 2014 %
as at 30 Septernber

Total Assets 1 £183 7m £167 8m +94
Which are attributable to

Debenture holders (Debt at par value) 2 £33 9m £33 9m

Equity Shargholders £149 8m £134 Om +118
Geanng 4 21 3% 23 4%

Potential Geanng 4 22 6% 253%

Group total returns (capital growth plus dividends) &

Net asset value per share ({debt at par value} 3 +12 8% +108%

Net asset value per share (debt at far value) 3 +13 0% +12 4%

Share price +157% +43 7%

Group capital returns

Nat assst value per share (debt at par value) 3 281 9p 256 7p +98
Net asset value per share (debt at far value) 265 5p 241 8p +98
Share prce 257 3p 229 0p +12 4
Discount of share price to net asset value per share

Debt at par value 87% 10 8%

Debt at far value 31% 53%

Group revenue and dividends

Net Revenue avalable to Equity Shareholders £4 9m £4 9m*

Net revenue return per share 94p 9 4p* +00
Total dividends per share 80p 76p +67
Total administrative expenses £2 1m £19m*

Ongoeing charges 6

Group (including costs of running subsidiary entities) 19% 18%"

Company (costs of operating the Company) 19% 17%

Notes

Defintions of terms used in the above summary gre as lolows
1 Total Assets Tota) essets are defined as total agsets less current kabibes

2 Debt at par or falr value Par value i the nomunal or lape vaiue attaching to the debentures wiwch will be paid by the Company i the debenture holders on maturty Fair valoe
ks the esbmated market price the Comparty would pay {on the relevant year end date) s e wiling buyer 10 B debenture holder as a wing seller in an arms length transacton

3 Net Assst Valus The Net Asset Value (MAV) i the value of all the Comparty's assets less any fablites The NAV 15 usualy expressed s an amount pes share

4 Gearing and Potantlal Gearing Gearing represents the amount of borrowings that a company has and is calcutated using Assoctation of trvestment Companies (IC)
gudance It is usualy expressed a3 a percentege of Equty Sharshoiders Funds and a posive percentage or ratio above one shows the extent of the borrowings Gearing
15 caicurtatpd ps bomowings less net current Bssats (o arrive at a net borrowings figure Potential Gearing excludes cash fom the caloutation Detalis of the calcutaton for the
Company am In nota 27 on page B8

5 Total Retum Total retumns inchude any dividends pad as well as captal retums as a result of an ncrease or decrease 1 a company's sham prica o net asset value

6 Ongoing charges Ongoing charges am a measure of the normal ongong costs of running & company Further edormation s contained in the Business Raview saction of
the Strategic Report on page 14
Includes both continuing and dscontinued operations

Year's high/low 2015 2014
Share price high 281 0p 240 0p
low 213 3p 160 Op
Net asset value - debt at par tugh 294 2p 256 7p
low 229 2p 228 6p
Discount - debt at par high 14 2% 33 5%
low 14% 14%
{Premium)/Discount — debt at far value hugh 8 4% 28 4%
low (5 5%) {4 6%)
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Ten Year Record

to 30 September 2015

Equity NAV
share- Per Share Company
Total' holders"  (Debt at Share Potential  Ongoing

Year Assets Funds par value) Pnca Discount Earnings’ Dividend Geanng' Geanng' Charges®
End £000 £000 Pence Pence % Pance Pence % % %
2008" 242,903 209,189 403 2 3383 1609 12 45 950" 1394 1612 i28
2007 286,944 253,216 4807 4133 1577 13 60 14 50 10 65 1332 124
2008 187,209 153,465 296 5 2500 1568 12 45 12 76" 16 69 2199 161
2009 157,943 124,181 2387 1808 2051 814 10 50 17 22 27 19 206
2010 150,940 117,159 2252 1915 1500 11 83 13 00™ 24 1 2883 236
2011 145,683 111,634 2145 1395 34 96 4 66 10 50" (172) 3028 192
2012 146,057 112,234 2156 1558 27 74 490 10 50 924 3014 183
2013 189,013 125,166 2405 1600 3347 6 80 10 50" 21 47 2704 173
2014 167,934 134,061 2567 2290 1079 936 7 50 2339 2527 166
2015 183,708 149,807 2819 2573 873 942 800 2125 2263 188
Notsa

1 Calcuiated 1 accordanca with AC gudance
Includes both continung and cecontinued operatong

# Ag from May 2012 Ongong Cnarpes repiace previous cost retos
Restated to reflect the review of the Teatment of the ivestment in Majedie Asset Management

* Ngt dvidends represant dmdends that relate to the Company's financial year Under Internabonal Financial Reparting Standards (IFRSS) dwdends are not accrued untl paid or

approved
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s Statement

The year ended 30 September 2015 represents the first full year of the Company's assets
being managed by Majedie Asset Management (MAM) In the 12 months to 30 September
2015 the NAV {Net asset value with debt at par) rose by 12 9% on a total return basis and
the share price by 15 7% on a total return basis In general stock markets were weak In the
second half of the year hawving risen in the first half of the year Over the year to

30 September 2015 the FTSE All Share Index and the MSCt World Index fell by 2 3% and

0 1% respectively on a total return basis

Results and Dividends

The Group had a capital return for the year of £12 5m
compared to the capital return of £11 Om from
continuing operations In 2014 There were no
discontinued operations in 2015, whereas in 2014
thers was a £2 6m capital loss Total income for the
Group was £6 6m compared to £6 6m n 2014 The
composition of total Income has altered due to the sale
of 10% of MAM 1n March 2014 and 2 5% in December
2014 Subsequently the dmidend receved from MAM
fell from £3 6m in the year to 30 September 2014 to
£3 3m in the year to 30 September 2015 The
mamntenance of the overall income leve! was accounted
for by increased income from the MAM Funds

Total Group administrative expenses and managemaent
fees have fallen from £2 3m to £2 1m On a cantinuing
basis, the total Group administrative expenses and
management fees have nsen from £1 6mto £2 1m
The increase refiects the first full year of investment
management fees paid to MAM, the Company paying
a full year of administrative expenses that previously
were borne by Javelin Capital and beanng the full
annual costs of a depostary following the
implementation of The Alternative Investment Fund
Managers Directive (AIFMD) The Investment
Management arrangements with MAM came into effect
In January 2014

The future reduchion of administration costs remain a
key area of focus for the Board and costs will fall over
time, dus to actions that have already been taken,
most notably, on property Some benefits will be
evident in the year to Septermnber 2016, but the full
impact will be seen In the year to September 2017

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC

The Company has also undertaken a review of its Fund
Administration and has decided it 1s more approprate
for its cumrent structure to In-source Fund
Admunistration  This will reduce overall costs in future
years Notwithstanding these actions the self-managed
nature of the Company and its size mean costs will
reman somewhat higher than the average However
shareholders will hopefully benefit from a dedicated
resource particutarly as regards marketing the
investment attractons to the widest possible audience

The net revenue return after taxation from continuing
operations for the year to 30 September 2015 was
£4 9m compared to £5 1m In the year to September
2014

The Board rebased the full year dvidend to 7 5p in
2014 and having paid an intenm dwvidend of 3 Op the
final dmdend will be 5 Op per share This represents an
increase of 6 7% from the full year dividend in 2014
The final dvidend will be pad on 27 January 2016 to
shareholders on the register on 15 January 2016

I am pleased that the Company’s share pnce has
mantaned a premium to its NAV with debt at far value
{as released weekly to the market) This s aganst a
background of weak stock markets in the second half
of the year and reflects a growang recognition of the
unique nature of the Company’s assets which are
managed across a vanety of strategies by a leading
boutique manager The Company retains a significant
investment in MAM



in the second half of the year the Company has 1ssued
stock from its EBT at a premium to NAV The EBT has
now been closed, with all shares in it having been sold
The Comparty has permisston from shareholders to
1ssue up to 10% of its equity at a premium to the
prevailing NAV (debt at far value) The Comparty was
granted a blocklisting exemption from the United
Kingdom Listing Authority in June and since then has
1ssued 605,000 shares at a premium to NAV It is
ntended to renaw this permission from shareholders at
the AGM Such share issuance will increase the size of
the Company which will benefit all shareho!ders as the
cost of debentures are diluted, the ongoing charges
ratio 15 reduced and the quidity of the Company’s
shares 15 likely to Increase

Annual General Meeting

The AGM wall be held on 20 January 2016 at 12 00
noaon at the City of London Club, 19 Old Broad Strest,
London EC2N 1DS Details are set out in the notice of
the meeting on page 89 There will be presentations
from MAM and the Board and an opportunity to ask
questions | hope you will be able to attend

The Company will move in December 2015 to new and
more appropnate premises at 1, Kings Arms Yard,
London EC2R 7AF

Finally | would lke to thank my fellow directors and
particularty the staff that have contnbuted to a
successful year for the Company with a total return of
12 9% whilst stock markets were generally flat | look
forward to further progress being made on reducing
the Company's costs In the current year

Pondreas Pdeock

Andrew J Adcock
Charrman
4 December 2015
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive’s Report

Introduction

The Company's assets, apart from the direct stake in
MAM, are allocated at the discretion of the Board
between investment strategies managed by MAM The
Company has no overall benchmark, rather each fund
has its own benchmark The Company’s fotal assets
were £183 7m at 30 September 2015 In the year
there wera two main changes in the Company’s asset
allocation First, the Company sold 2 5% of MAM

in December 2014 for £5 7m, of the proceeds £2 Om
was allocated to the MAM UK Equity Segregated
Fund, £2 0m to the MAM UK Income Fund and £1m to
the MAM Tortoise Fund Secondly there was a
reallocation in August 2015 of £10m from the MAM UK
Equity Segregated Fund to the MAM Global Equity
Fund

MAM Funds and Investment Performance

The MAM UK Equity Fund 1s the flagship product of
MAM having started in March 2003 and since inception
to September 2015 has returned 12 8% per annum
net of fees with a refative outperformance against its
benchrmark FTSE All Share Index of 4 0% per annum
The Company's assets are invested in a segregated
fund that 1s managed n parallel to the MAM UK Eguity
Fund The funds are predominantly invested in UK
equities with overseas equities imited to 20% and the
strategy incorporates a dedicated allocation to UK
smaller companes The sum mvested n the
segregated fund at 30 September 2015 was £56 3m
which represents 30 6% of the Company’s total assets
in the year to 30 September 2015 the fund returned
0% net of fees, which 1s an outperformance of 2 3%
against ts benchmark Detalls of the principal
investments held within the UK segregated fund are set
out on page 10

The MAM Tortoise Fund 15 a global equity absolute
return product which started in August 2007 and since
inception has returned 8 7% per annum net of fees
The fund has an allocation of £27 5m which represents
15 0% of the Company's total assets The fund returned
-3 5% net of fees in the year to 30 September As an
absolute return fund it has no relevant benchmark

The MAM UK Income Fund started in December 2011
Its objective 1s to maintain an attractive yield whilst
outperfarming the FTSE All Share Index over the longer
term Since inception the fund has returned 19 4% per
annum net of fees which 1s an outperformance of

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC

10 6% per annum In the year to 30 September 2015
the fund returned 11 0% net of fees, which is an
outperformance of 13 3% aganst ts benchmark The
Company has an allocation of £20 5m to the fund
which represents 11 1% of the Company’s total assets

The MAM Global Equity Fund, MAM Global Focus
Fund and MAM US Equity Fund were launched in June
2014 Since inceptton the funds have returned 4 3%,

8 0% and 19 3% net of fees which represent an
outperformance against therr benchmarks of 1 6%,
53% and 7 1% respectively In the year to September
the funds returned 2 5%, 8 2% and 11 0% net of fees,
which is a relative outperformance of 2 6%, 8 3% and
5 3% compared to the stering benchmarks of the
MSCI ACWI (Developed and Emerging Markets) and
the S8P 500 The absolute returns for the Company
have benefitted from the strength of the dollar though
this has had no effect on relative returns At

30 September 2015, the Company’s allocations to
these funds wers £14 B6m, £5 4 and £6 Om respectively
which represent 7 9%, 2 9% and 3 2% of the
Company's total assets

The aggregate geographic and sector exposures of the
MAM UK Equity Segregated Fund, MAM UK Income
Fund, MAM Global Equity Fund, MAM Global Focus
Fund and MAM US Equity Fund are shown on page 9

To enhance the transparency for shareholders of the
indwidual MAM funds we intend that the fund
factsheets for each of the MAM funds which the
Company invests in wil be avalable on the Company's
website in due course

Majedie Asset Management

The Company sold 2 5% of MAM in December 2014
and, following the cancellation by MAM of some
shares, now owns 16 7% of MAM The Board has
increased the value of its holding in MAM to £52 3m
as at 30 September 2015 The valuation of MAM I
formulaic ang the Board believe reflects far value The
holding In MAM represents 28 6% of the Company’s
total assets Dunng the year to September the
Company receved dividends of £3 3m from its
holding In MAM



MAM’s AUM increased to £11 2bn dunng the year from
£10 2bn, predominantly as a result of strong inflows
into the MAM UK Income Fund that were balanced by
negative stock market movements in the second half of
the year The relative performances of all the long only
funds were ahead of their respective benchmarks over
the year The MAM Gilobal Fund, MAM Global Focus
Fund and MAM US Equity Fund have each performed
well stnce therr launch in June 2014 The third party
assets mvested in these funds are now growing and
the level of enquines from potential investors I1s
encouraging for the future

Realsation Portfolio

The realisation portfolio 1s now immatenal for the
Company though the remaning heldings are monitored
in case further value can be achieved it 1s now lass than
0 2% and net cash 1s 0 5% of total assets The nst cash
figure excludes cash held within the segregated fund

Development of Net Asset Value

Summary

The year represented a difficult one for stock markets
globally so it 1s encouraging that the Company's NAY
increased by 12 9% Investments in a vanety of MAM
funds give the Company access to a vanety of style
and coverage The result 1s a diversified portfolio in
terms of geography and sectors The increased
allocatton to the MAM Gilobal Equity Fund and
consequent reduction in the MAM UK Equity
Segregated Fund should further diversify the return
profile The MAM Tortoise Fund did not meet our return
expectations in the last year, but it remains an
important tool to manage the volatility of returns in
penods of turbulent markets and therefore shoutd
enhance the nsk return charactenstics of the total
portfolic over time The holding in MAM remains a key
differentiator for the Company's shareholders and it 1s
pleasing that the new Global and US Funds have had
such a strong track record since their inception

The chart below outines the change in the Group's Net Asset Value (with debt at par) over the year ended
30 September 2015 In aggregate, the NAV has increased by £15 7m, baeing compnsed of net investment gains of
£22 3m, inflows from the issue of new shares and EBT shares of £2 2m, beng offset by expenses and interest of

£4 9m and lastly dwidends paid to sharsholders of £3 9m

+£1 3m

+£22m

+2200m s ©02m [ =™

oo

{£3 om)

+£12m
£134 1m
]
Issue of
NAV MAM LIKES MAM MAM Realsation new shares Admin Finance Drvidend NAy
30.09 14 Portiolio Funds Portfolio tncl EBT Costs Costs Paid 300915
shares)
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive’s Report

Allocation of Tota! Assets as at 30 September 2015

Value % of
£000 Total Assets
MAM UK Equrty Segregated Fund 56,280 306
MAM UK Income Fund 20,470 111
MAM Global Equity Fund 14,564 79
MAM Gilobal Focus Fund 5,397 29
MAM US Equity Fund 5,870 32
MAM Tortoise Fund 27,547 150
MAM 52,300 286
Net cash/realisation fund* 1,180 o7
183,708 100 0
“Net cash and realisation fund does not nclude cash held in e MAM LIK Equty Segregatad Fund or MAM funds
MAM Fund Performance
12 months to
30 September Since M|
2015 % Benchmark % Relative invested % benchmark % Relative
% Fund return return performance % Fund retum return Performance
MAM UK Equity Segregated Fund 00 23) 23 20 B0 10
MAM UK Income Fund 110 23 133 159 04 156
MAM Global Equity Fund 25 1) 26 43 27 16
MAM Gilobal Focus Fund 82 1) 83 80 27 53
MAM US Equity Fund 110 57 53 193 122 71
Tortoise Fund (35 82

Notes
Al Fund retums are shown net of fees

The MAM UK Equity Segregated Fund commeanced on 22 January 2014 On 18 December 2014 the alocation was increased by £2 0m and on 18 August 2015 the
alocation was reduced by £10m

The wital Investmant in the MAM UK Income Fund was made on 29 January 2014 On 18 December 2014 the a%ocaton was increased by E2m

The intial imvestments in the MAM Global Equity Fund MAM Global Focus Fund and MAM US Equity Fund were made on 30 June 2014 ang 27 June 2014
respectvely The alocation to the MAM Global Egurty Fund was increased by £10m on 19 August 2015

The ntial nvestment 1 the MAM Tortoisa Fund was made on 28 January 2014 and the allocaton was ncreased by £1 Om on 18 December 2014

Tam éam (SN

Wilham Barlow
CEO
4 December 2015
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Strategic Report
Fund Analysis

at 30 Saptember 2015

Geographical Analys:s

% of Total

UK

Europs

us

Asia Paciffic
Emerging Markets
Cash

Sector Analysis

825
134
184
13
24
20

1000

9% of Total

Basic Materals
Consumer Goods
Consumer Servicas
Financials
Healthcara
Industnals

Ol & Gas
Technology
Telecommunications
Utilities

Cash

Notas

62
30
239
257
56
88
72
45
121
10
20

1000

The assets analysed ahove are the aggregate exposure of MAM UK Equty Segregatad Fund MAM UK income Fund MAM Global Eouety Fund  MAM Global Focus

Fund and MAM US BEquty Fund The aggregate represents a totat of 65 7% of the Company's total rssets
Exposures am classfied on the $tock exchangs ot wihich the undadying ecuty 15 Rsted and FTSE sector classdicaton
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Strategic Report

Twenty Largest MAM UK Equity Segregated Fund Holdings

at 30 September 2015
% of UK
Equity
Markat Value Sogregated
Company £000 Fund
MAM UK Smaller Compantes Fund* 5,202 94
HSBC Holdings pic 3,664 66
Royat Dutch Shell plc 2,771 50
Vedafone Group Plc 2,740 50
BP plc 2,739 50
Barclays Bank PLC 2,181 39
Orange SA 1,752 32
Tesco Plc 1,686 3
Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc 1,649 30
GlaxoSmithKline pic 1,594 29
BT Group plc 1,548 28
Telecom [talla SpA 1,419 26
Marks & Spencer Group PLC 1,307 24
Royal KPN NV 1,213 22
Rentokil Initial plc 1,135 21
Rio Tinto plc 1,080 20
Uoyds Banking Group plc 1,035 18
Wm Momson Supermmarkets plc Q97 18
AstraZeneca PLC 966 17
Travis Perkins plc 935 17
37,623 68 3

* Previously MAM Special Situations Fund
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Strategic Report

Business Review

Introduction and Strategy

Majedie Investments PLC (the Company) 1s an
investment trust company and an Alternative
Investment Fund (AIF), with an investment objective to
maximise total shareholder return, whilst increasing
dwvidends by more than the rate of inflation over the
long term In seeking to achieve this objective, the
Board has determined an investment policy and related
guidelnes or imits The mvestment cbjective and policy
(as detalled below and on page 12) wera both last
approved by shareholders at a General Meeting of the
Company on 27 February 2014

The Company has been subject to the Alternative
investment Fund Managers Directive {AIFMD) from
22 July 2014 The AIFMD regulates the Alternative
Investment Fund Managers {AlFMs) of AIF's The
Company's status under the AIFMD 1s that it Is a self-
managed AIF {meaning that it 1s also an AIFM as well
as an AlF}, which requires the Company to be
authonsed and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authonty (FCA) The AIFMD also requires the
appointment of a depositary and the Company has
appointed Bank of New York Mellon UK (BNYM (UK))
to be its depositary Further detals concerning the
Company’s regulatory environment are set out below

Since January 2014, the Company has been a
member of the AIC (the trade body for closed-ended
nvestment companies)

The purpose of the Strategrc Report (which s the
Strategic Report for the Group} s to inform the
shareholders of the Company and help them assess
how the directors have performed therr duty to
promete the success of the Company in accordance
with section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 by

¢ analysing development and performance using
approprate Key Performance Indicaters (KPls),

* providing a far and balanced review of the
Company's business,

& outlining the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties
affecting the Company,

s descnbing how the Comparny manages these nsks,

* setting out the Company's environmental, social and
ethical policy,

* outlining the man trends and factors hkely to affect
the future development, performance and position
of the Company’s business, and

+ explaning the future business plans of the Company

Business Model

In pursuing its Investment objective, the Company's
business model includes other entites which together
form the Group Active companies in the Group
currently consist of the Company (as a global equity
investment trust and FCA regulated self-managed AlF)
and Majedie Portfolio Management Limited (which is
the FCA regulated Majedie Investments PLC Share
Plan Manager) Further detals about the subsidiary
company can be found n note 14 to the Accounts on
page 72

The business model currently used by the Company
delegates certain arrangements to other service
providers These delegations are in accordance with
the AIFMD (the detalls of the matenal delegaticns can
be found on pages 21 and 22 of the Company's
Annual Report and Accounts), but the Board, as an
AlFM and in accordance with the Company's
investment objective and policy, directs, controls and
monttors the overall performance, operations and
direction of the Company

The Company’s Employess, Social, Environmental,
Ethical and Human Rights policy 1s contained in the
Directors® Report on page 20

fnvestment Objective

The Company's investment cbjective 1s to maximise
total shareholder return whilst increasing dividends by
more than the rate of inflation over the long term

REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2035
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Strategic Report

Business Review

Investment Policy

* General

The Company invests pnncipally in secunties of publicly
quoted companies worldwide and in funds managed
by its nvestment manager, though t may invest in
unquoted securties up 1o levels set penodically by the
Board, including its investment in MAM  Investments in
unquoted securties, other than those managed by its
investment manager or made pror to the date of
adoption of this Investment policy, (measured by
reference to the Company's cost of investment} will not
excead 10% of the Company’s gross assets

* Risk Dversification

Whilst the Company will at all trmes Invest and manage
its assets in a manner that 1s consistent with spreading
investment nsk, there will be no ngid 1ndustry, sector,
region or country restnctions The overall approach 13
based on an analysts of giobal economies sector trends
with a focus on companies and sectors judged likely to
deliver strong growth over the long term The number of
Investmeants held, together with the geographic and
sector diversity of the portfolio, enable the Company to
spread its naks with regard to iquidity, market volatitty,
curmency movements and revenue streams

The Company will not invest in any holding that would,
at the time of investment, represent more than 15% of
the value of its gross assets save that the Company
may Invest up to 25% of its gross assets in any single
fund managed by its Investment Manager where the
Board belteves that the investment policy of such funds
1s consistent with the Company's objective of
spreading nvestment nsk

The Company may utiise denvative instruments
including Index-linked notes, contracts for difference,
covered options and other equity-related denvative
instruments for efficient portfoho management and
investment purposes

Any use of dervatives for investment purposes will be
made on the basis of the same pnnciples of risk
spreading and diversification that apply to the
Company's direct nvestments, as described above

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC

e Asset Allocation

The assets of the Company will be allocated pnncipally
between investments in publicly quoted companies
worldwide and in investments intended to prowvide an
absolute return {in each case either directly or through
other funds or collective iInvestment schemes managed
by the Company's investment manager) and the
Company’s investment in MAM itself

* Benchmark

The Company does not have one overall benchmark,
rather each distinct group of assets 15 viewed
independently Any investments made into funds
managed by the Company’s investment manager wll
be measured against the benchmark or benchmarks, if
any, whose constituent investments appear to the
Company to cormespond most closely to those
investments It s important to note that in all cases
Investment decisions and portfolio construction are
made on an independent basis The Board however
sets vanous specific portfolo mits for stocks and
sectors in order to restnct nsk levels from time to tme,
which remain subject to the investment restrictions set
out In this section

* Geanng

The Company uses geanng currently via long term
debentures The Board has the ability to bomow up to
100% of adjusted capital and reserves The Board also
reviews the level of geanng (borrowings less cash) on
an ongoing basis and sets a range at its discretion as
appropnate The Company’s current debenture
borrowings are Imited by covenant to 66 2/s% and any
additional Indebtedness 15 not to exceed 20% of
adjusted capital and reserves

Regulatory and Competitive Environment

The Company 1s an investment trust and has a
premiurn listing on the London Stock Exchange [t 1s
subject to United Kingdom and European legislation
and regulations including UK company law, IFRS,
Listing, Prospectus and Disclosurs and Transparency
Rules, taxation law and the Company's own Articles of
Assgciation The directors are charged with ensunng
that the Company complies with its objectives as well
as these regulations



Under the Companies Act 20086, section 833, the
Company is defined as an investment company

As outlined previcusly the Company I1s subject to the
AIFMD The AIFMD requires that all AlFs are managed
by a regulated AIFM in accordance with the
requirements of the Directive These requirements are
In respect of nsk management, conflicts of interest,
leverage, iquidity management, delegation, the
reguirement to appoint a depositary, regulatory capital,
valuations, disclosure of information to nvestors or
potential iInvestors, remuneration and marketing

The financial statements report on profits, the changes
N equity, the balance sheet posttion and the cash flows
in the current and pnor financial penod This 1s in
complianca with current IFRS as adopted by the EU,
supplemented by the Statement of Recommended
Practice for Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts {SORP) 1ssued in November 2014 {which
applies to accounting penods starting on or after

1 January 2015, but which has been early adopted by
the Company} The principal accounting policies of the
Company are set out in note 1 to the accounts on
pages 53 to 58

Total Return Philosophy & Dividend Policy

The Directors believe that investment returns will be
maximised f a total return policy 1s followed whereby
the Investment Manager pursues the best
opportunities The policy aim 1s to increase dvidends
by more than inflation over the long term Further
details are under the Dividend Growth section on

page 14 The Company has a comparatively high level
of revenue reserves for the investment trust sector At
£22 9m, the revenue reserves represent over five imes
the current annual dvidend distnbution The strength of
these reserves will assist in underpinning the
Company's progressive dividend policy in years when
the income from the portfolio 15 insufficient to cover
completely the annual distnbution, although 1t 1s not
currently anticipated

Performance Management

The Board uses the following KPls to help assess
progress aganst the Company's cbjectives Further
comments on these KPIs are contained in the
Charman’s Statement and Chief Executive’s Report
sections of the Strategic Report respectively

¢ NAV and Total Shareholder Return
The Board believes that asset return 1s fundamental
to delvenng value over the long term and I1s a key
determinant of shareholder return The Board further
beleves that, in accordance with the Company’s
objective, the total return basis (which includes
dividends paid out to shareholders) 1s the bast
measure of how to measure long term shareholder
return The Board, at each meeting, receives reports
detailing the Company's NAV and shareholder total
return performance, asset allocaton and related
analyses Detalls of the NAV and share pnce total
return performance for the year are shown in the
Year's Summary on page 2

s Investment Group performance
The Board believes that after asset allocation, the
performance of each of the investment groups is the
key driver of NAV return and hence sharsholder
return The Board recewves, at each meeting,
detalled reports showing the performance of the
investment groups which also includes relevant
attnbution analysis The Chief Executive’s Report
provides further detall on each investment group's
performance for the year

e Share price premium/discount
As a closed ended listed investment company, the
share price of the Company can and does differ
from that of the NAV This can give nse to either a
premium or discount and as such i1s another
component of Total Shareholder Return Dunng the
year a shight namowing of the discount {with the NAV
with Debt at par) resulted in the Company’s share
pnce gain outperforming the gan in the Company's
NAV {with Debt at par)
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Business Review

The Board continually monitors the Company's
premium or discount, and has receved approval
(and 1s seeking to renew such approval for another
year) to 1ssue new shares, at a premium to the
retevant NAV (with debt at far value), in order to
meet natural market demand Additionally for
maximum flexibility the Board does have the ability to
buy back shares if thought appropnate, although it
must be noted that this ability 1s tmited by the
majorty shareholding held by members of the Barlow
family Details of movements in the Company’s share
pnce discount or premium over the year are shown
In the Year's Summary on page 2

Expenses

The Board 1s aware of the impact of costs on
returns and 1s conscious of seeking to minimise
these (taking into account the Company's self
managed status} The industry wide measure for
investment trusts I1s ongoing charges, which seeks
to quantify the ongoing costs of running the
Company This measures the annual normal
ongoing costs of an iInvestment trust, excluding
performance fees, cne off expenses and investment
dealing costs, as a percentage of average equity
shareholders’ funds Any investments made into
pooled funds are included using the Company's
share of estimated cngoing fund running costs The
Chairman’s Statement on page 4 provides further
details on the expenses during the year Details of
ongoing charges for the year are shown n the
Year's Summary on page 2

Dividend Growth

Dividends pad to shareholders are an important
component of Total Shareholder Return and this has
been included in the Company’s investment
objective The Board s aware of the importance of
this objective to the Company’s shareholders and in
recent years has mantained the dvidend by using
some of the Company’s large revenue reserves
Following the restructunng of the Company in 2014,
the Board resolved to rebase the annual drvidend
with a view to moving to a sustainable and
progressive dividend policy, paying dvidends out of

current year income rather than from revenue
reserves The Board receves detaled management
accounts and forecasts which show the actual and
forecast financial outturns for the Company and the
Group For the year to 30 September 2015, being
after the rebasing, dividend growth has been 6 7%
which again 1s ahead of inflation over that year

Principal Risks

The pnncipal nsks and the Company's policies for
managing these nsks and the policy and practices with
regard to financial instruments are summansed below
and in note 27 to the accounts

I Investment Risk
The Company has a range of equity investments,
Including a substantial investment n an unlisted
asset management business, UK and global equities
{both on a direct basis (wa the MAM UK Equity
Segregated Fund (UKESF)} and via collective
investment vehicles (the MAM Funds), and an
investment in an absolute return fund, the MAM
Tortoise Fund The major nsk for the Company
remains investment risk, pnmanly market nsk,
however It 1s recognised that the investment in MAM
continues to represent concentration nsk for the
Company

The number of investments held, togsther with the
geographic and sector diversity of the portfolio,
enables the Company to spread its rigsks with regard
to lquidity, market volatility, currency movements
and revenue streams

Under the terms of the Investment Agreement the
Investment Manager manages the majonty of the
Company's investment assets The portfolios of
UKESF and the MAM Funds are actively managed
by MAM against benchmarks and each have
specific imits for ndwidual stocks and market
sectors that are monitored i real time It should be
noted that UKESF and the MAM Funds' returns will
differ from the benchmark returns The MAM
Tortoise Fund 1s an absolute return fund whose
returns are not correlated to equity markets The
principal nsks are moderated by stnct control of
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position sizing, low use of leverage and investing in
iquid stocks Also the level of nsk at a net asset
value leval Increases with geanng In certan
circumstances cash balances may be raised to
reduce the effective level of gearing This would
result in a lower levet of rsk in absolute terms

Other nsks faced by the Company include the following

Strategy Risk

An inappropnate investrment strategy could result n
poor retums for shareholders and the introduction of
or a widening of the discount of the share pnce to
the NAV per share The Board regularly reviews
strategy in relation to a range of i1ssues including
investment policy and objective, the allocation of
assets betwaen investment groups, the level and
effect of geanng and cumency or geographic
exposure,

Business Risk

Inappropnate management or controls in the
Company or at MAM could result in financial loss,
reputational nsk and regulatory censure The Board
has representation on the MAM governing board to
monitor business financial performance and
operations and receives detalled reports from
Company management on financial and non-
financial performance,

Comphance Risk

Failure to comply with regulations could result in the
Company losing its isting, losing its FCA
authonsation as a self managed AIF or baing
subjected to corporation tax on iis capitat gains
The Board recevas and reviews regular reports from
its service providers and Company management on
the controls in place to prevent non-compiliance of
the Company with rules and regulations The Board
also recewves regular investment listings and income
forecasts as part of its montonng of complance
with sectrons 1158 to 1162 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2010, and

v Operational Risk
Inadequate financial controls and falure by an
outsourced supplier to perform to the required
standard could result In misappropnation of assets,
loss of iIncome and debtor receipts and mis-
reporting of NAVs The Board and Audit Committee
regularty review statements on internal controls and
procedures and subject the books and records of
the Company to an annual external audit The
Corporate Governance statement and the Report of
the Audit Committee In the Company’s Annual
Report and Accounts provide further information in
respect of internal control systems and risk
management procedures

On behalf of the Board

Prdrene  Pdcock

Andrew J Adcock
Charman
4 December 2015

REPORT & ACCOUNES 2015

15



16

Board of Directors

This page forms part of the Director's Report

Andrew J Adcock™ MA Chairman

Mr Adcock was the managing partner of Brompton
Asset Management LLP until he retired in July 2011

He 1s a non-executve director of Majedie Portfolio
Management Limited, F&C Global Smaller Companies
PLC and Kleinwort Benson Bank Limited In July 2015,
he was appointed as charman of JP Morgan European
Investment Trust ple and was appointed as charman
of VPC Specialty Lending Investments PLC in February
2015 He s also a non-executive director of Foxtons
Group plc, and 1s charman cf ther Remuneration
Committee He 1s charman of the Samuel Courtauld
Trust and a director of The Courtauld Institute of Art,
and 1s acting chamman of the Institute’s Audt
Committee

He was vice charrman, Citigroup Corporate Finance
until his retirement in 2009 Previously he was a partner
for three years at Lazards 11 C which followed ten
years at BZW as the managing director of De Zoste &
Bevan Umited He was appointed a director of the
Company on 1 Apnl 2008 and 1s the Chairman of the
Board and Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration, Management Engagement and
Audit Committees

J Willlam M Barlow

Mr Barlow was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the
Company from 1 Apnl 2014, before which he was a
member and chief operating officer at Javelin Capital
LLP Pror to Javelin Capital LLP, he was at Newedge
Group He was managing director of DnB Asset
Management (UK) Limited having been apponted In
2002 He joined Skandia Asset Management Limited
as an equity portfolio manager in 1991 Mr Barlow was
appointed a director of the Company in July 1999 and
1s a director of Majedie Portfolio Management Limited
and a non-executive director of MAM He s also a
Trustee of Racing Welfare
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Paul O Gadd*

Mr Gadd was appointed a dector of the Company on
1 October 2009 He was a solicitor and had spent 17
years with Ashurst, retinng in 2009 after 10 years as a
partner, latterly as head of Ashurst's investment
company practice He 1s Charman of the
Remuneration and Management Engagement
Committees and 1s a member of the Nomnation and
Audit Committees

R David C Henderson* FCA

Mr Henderson, a Chartered Accountant, is currently
special adwvisor to Kleinwort Benson, chairman of Alder
Asset Management, and 1s also a non-executive
director of Novae Group pic, MM&K Limited and
EdenTres Investment Management, a subsidiary of
Ecclesiastical Insurance Group Previously he was
chairman of Kletnwort Benson Private Bank from 2004
to 2008 having held vanous senior roles in the
Kleinwort Benson Group since 1995 Pnor to that he
spent 11 years at Russell Reynolds Associates which
followed 10 years at Morgan Grenfell & Co and 6 years
at what 1s now Baker Tiliy He was appointed a director
of the Company on 22 September 2011, 1s Charman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration, Nomination and Management
Engagement Committees

* Independent non executive



Directors’ Report

The directors submit their report and the accounts for
the year ended 30 September 2015

introduction

The Directors’ Report includes the Corporate
Governance statement, the Report of the Audit
Committee, and the Directors’ Remuneration Report A
review of the Company’s business 15 contaned in the
Strategic Report {which includes the Chairman's
statement) and should be read in conjunction wath the
Drrectors' Report

Principat Activity and Status

The Company i1s a public imited company and an
investment company under section 833 of the
Companies Act 2006 It operates as an investment
trust and 1s not a close company The Company has
been a member of the AIC since 20 January 2014

The Company has receved histonc wntten
confirmation from HM Revenue & Customs that it
meets the eligibiity condtions and 15 an approved
mvestment trust for taxation purposes under sections
1158/59 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010, with effect
from 1 October 2012, subject to it continuing to meet
the elighility conditions and on-going requirements In
the opinion of the directors, the Company continues to
direct its affairs so as to enable it to continue to qualfy
as an approved investment trust

Resuits and Dividend

The consolidated net revenue return before taxation
ansing from continuing operations amounted to
£4,866,000 (2014 £5,148,000), and the net loss
before taxation ansing from discontinued operations
was nif (2014 £232,000) The directors recommend a
final ordinary dividend of 5 Qp per ordmary share,
payable on 27 January 2016 to shareholders on the
register at the close of business on 15 January 2016
Together with the intenm dmdend of 3 Op per share
pad on 26 June 2015, this makes a total distnbuticn
of 8 Op per share in respect of the financial year (2014
7 5p per share)

Risk Management and Objectives

The Company as an investment trust, and the Group,
are subject to vanous nsks in pursuing ther objectives
The nature of these nsks and the controls and policies
In place across the Group that are used to minmise
these nsks are further detalled in the Strategic Report
and n note 27 of the Accounts

Drrectors

The directors in office at the date of this report are
Iisted on page 16 of the Company's Annual Report and
Accounts

Directors’ retirement by rotation and appointment 1s
subject to the Company's Artictes of Association and
the AIC Code of Corporate Governance

The Company's Articies of Association require that at
every Annual Generat Meeting any director who has
not retired from office at the preceding two Annual
General Meetings shall stand for re-appointment by the
Company

Therefore In accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr PD Gadd, having been last
re-appointed at the Annual General Meeting in 2013,
will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, will offer hmself for re-appontment

In accerdance with Listing Rule 15 2 13A, Mr JWM
Barlow, being a non-executve director of Majedie
Asset Management Limited, the Investment Manager,
must submit himself for annual re-appointment

The Board has considered the continued appointment
of Mr JWM Barlow who has served for over 15 years
The Board's view 1s that iength of tenure does not
compromuise Independence and that expenence and
continuty can add strength to a Board

The Board believes that the performance of

Mr JWM Barlow, and Mr PD Gadd, continues to be
effective, that they demaonstrate commitment to therr
roles and have a range of business, financial and asset
management skills and expenence relevant to the
direction and controt of the Company

The Board, having considered the retinng directors’
performance within the annual Board perfermance
evaluation, hereby recommends that shareholders vote
in favour of the proposed re-appointments
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Qualifying Third Party Indemnity Provisions

There are no qualifying third party indemnity provisions
or qualfying penston scheme indemnity provistons
which would require disclosure under secticn 236 of
the Comparnies Act 2006

Directors’ interests
Beneficial interests in ordinary shares as at

30 September 1 Cctober

2015 2014

Mr AJ Adcock 50,000 50,000
Mr JWM Barlow 692,083 676,083
Mr PD Gadd 40,448 30,000
Mr RDC Henderson 4,700 4,700

Non-beneficial Interests i ordinary shares as trustees
for vanious settlements as at

30 September 1 October
2015 2014

Mr JWM Barlow 1,959,165 1,897,165

There have been no changes to any of the above
holdings between 30 September 2015 and the date of
this report

Substantial Shareholdings

At 30 November 2015, the Company has been notified
of the following substantial holdings in shares carrying
voting nghts

Mr HS Barlow Beneficial 15,017,619 28 26%
Non-beneficial 613,084 115%

Aviva plc 7,007,994 1319%

Mr MHD Barlow Beneficial 1,776,241 3 34%
Non-beneficial 1,360,750 2 56%

Sr JK Barlow Beneficial 1,561,805 294%

Non-beneficial 869,086 164%
Mr GB Barlow 877433 165%
Miss AE Barlow 2034948 383%
Mr JWM Barlow Beneficial 692,083 130%

Non-beneficial 1,859,165 3 68%

The substantial voting nghts disclosed above include
the total holdings of shares within certain trusts where
there are other beneficianes

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC

There have been no changes to any of the above
holdings between 30 November 2015 and the date of
this report

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at City of
London Club, 19 Old Broad Street, London EC2N 1DS
on Wednasday, 20 January 2016 at 12 noon The
notice convening the Annual General Meeting Is
avarlable on the Company's website

The Board considers that Resolutions 1 1o 11 are likely
to promote the success of the Company and are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole The Directors unanimously recommend that
you vote in favour of the Resolutions as they intend to
do in respect of their own beneficial holdings

Issue and Buyback of Shares

The Board 1s of the view that an increase of the
Company's stock In 1ssue provides benefits to
shareholders inciuding a dilution of the Company's
gearing and cost of its debentures, a reduction in the
Cempany's administrative expenses on a per share
basis and increased lquidity in the Company’s shares
As such the Board sought and received approval, at
the Annual General Meeting on 14 January 2015, to
allot new shares for cash, and without first offenng
them to existing shareholders in proportion to their
holdings, up to a maximum of 5,200,000 shares (being
approximately 9 99% of the Company’s existing share
capital at that time) These two existing authonties wil
expire at the 2016 Annual General Mesting The
directors undertake not to allot any such new shares
unless they are allotted at a price representing a
premium to the Company's then prevailing NAV per
share, with debt at far value

Bunng the year a total of 605,000 shares have been
allotted from the date of the General Meeting to

30 September 2015, or subsequently to the date of
this report Additienally dunng the year, 235,476 shares
were sold by the Company's EBT with a further 72,911
shares being exercised Following these transactions
the EBT haolds no shares and has been closed




The Board continues to be prepared to 1ssue new
shares in order to meet natural market demand,
subject to the restnction that any new shares will be
1ssued at a premium, and as such shareholder
approval 1s sought at the Annual General Meeting to
renew the authonty to issue new shares, without first
offarng them to existing shareholders in proportion to
therr holdings, up to a maximum of 5,300,000 shares
[being approximately 9 99% of the Company’s existing
share capital}

Since 1 QOctober 2014, and up to the date of this
report, the Company has made no buybacks for
cancellation of its ordinary shares At the Annual
General Meeting in 2015 the directors were gven
power to buy back 7,813,947 ordinary shares (being
14 99% of the Company's existing share capital) Since
the Annual General Mesting the directors have not
bought any shares under this authonty This authonty
will expire at the 2016 Annual General Meeting

In order to provide maximum flexibility, the directors
consider it appropnate that the Company be
authonsed to make such purchases and accordingly
shareholder approval 1s sought at the Annual General
Meseting to renew the authonty of the Gompany to
exercise the power contained in its Articles of
Association to make buybacks of ts own shares The
maximum nurmber of shares which rmay be purchased
15 14 99% of the 1ssued share capital Any shares so
purchased will be cancelled The restnctions on such
purchasss {including minmum and maxmum pnces)
are outlined in the Notice of Meeting The Authonty will
be used where the directors consider it to be In the
best interests of the shareholders

Capital Structure

As part of ts corporate governance the Board keeps
under review the captal structure of the Company At

30 September 2015, the Company had a nomina) issued
share capital of £5,313,300, compnsing 53,133,000
ordinary shares of 10p each, camying one vote each All
of the shares of the Company are listed on the London
Stock Exchange, which 1s a regulated market

The directors consider that new shares should be
1ssued to meet natural market demand, so long as any
such shares are i1ssued at a premum to the Company’s
NAV (as measured with debt at fair value} Dunng the
year and following demand for the Company's shares,
a total of 605,000 10p shares were allotted

Additionally the Board has each year renewed the
authority of the Company to make market buybacks of
its own shares However, the Board 1s only likety to use
such authonty in special circumstances In general the
directors balieve that a discount to net assets will be
reduced sustainably over the long term by the creation
of value through the development of the business

The Company deploys geanng through two long term
debentures £15m 9 5% debenture stock 2020 and
£25m 7 25% debenture stock 2025, which were
1ssued in 1994 and 2000 respectively In 2004 the
Company redeemed £1 5m of the 2020 issue and

£4 3m of the 2025 ssue as an opportunity arose to
redeem at an attractive price

The lumuts on the ability to borrow are descnbed in the
investment policy on page 12 The Board 1s
responsible for managing the overall geanng of the
Company Detalls of gearing levels are contained in the
Year's Summary on page 2, and in note 27 to the
Accounts

There was one employee share scheme operated by
the Group The last awards 1ssued under the scheme
were made in 2009, and following the exercise of the
last remaining awards dunng the year it and the related
EBT have been closed Further details are in note 26 to
the accounts

There are no restnctions on voting nghts, no restnctions
concerning the transfer of secunties in the Company, no
special nghts with regard to control attached to
secunties, no agreements between holders of secunties
regarding their transfer known to the Company, and no
agreements which the Company 1s party to that might
affect its control or tngger any compensatory payments
for directors, following a takeover bid
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Notice period for general meetings

The Board believes that it 1s in the best interests of
shareholders of the Company to have the ability to call
meetings on 14 days’ clear notice shoufd a matter
require urgency The Board will therefore, as last year,
propose a resolution at the Annual General Meeting to
approve the reduchion in the mirnimum notice penod
from 21 clear days to 14 clear days for all general
mestings other than annual general meetings The
directors do not intend to use the authonty unless
immediate action 1s required

Future Developments

The Chairman’s Statement and the Chief Executive's
report above prowide details as concerning relevant
future developments of the Company and the Group In
the forthcoming year

Employees, Social, Environmental, Ethical and
Human Rights policy

The Company, as an investment trust, has a limited
direct impact upon the environment In carrying out its
activities and relationships with s employees, suppliers
and the communtty, the Company ams to conduct
itself responsibly, ethically and fairly

The Company has appointed MAM to manage the
maonty of its investment assets In doing so it takes
account of social, environmental, ethical and human
nghts factors, where appropnate

Carbon Reporting

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors’ Reports} Regulations 2013, the
Company Is required to report on its greenhouse gas
emissions In accordance with the regulations, the
Company has determined that its organisational
boundary, to which entities the regulations apply, 1s
consistent with its consolidated accounts

The Company cperates in the financial services sector
and in common with many organisations employs
outsourcing such that most of its actvities are
performed by other outside organisations which do not
gve nse to any reportable ermissions by the Group

MAJEDIE {INVESTMENTS PLC

Howsever the Company, as a self managed investment
trust, does undertake activities at 1ts leased premises
In accordance with the prowision of the centrally
provided buliding services (inciuding heating, light,
cooling etc) to all lessees in the buldding by the landlord
it 1s considered that the Company does not have
emnissions responsibility In respect of these services,
which rather rest with the landlord The Company does
howaver have responaibility for vanous other emissions
In the usage of electncity by its office equipment In the
course of undertaking ts duties but it 1s not able to
determine ther amounts as compared to those
provided by the landlord

Addticnally, the Compary has many investments in
companies around the world, however the Company
does not have the ability to control the actmties of these
investee companies and as such has no responsibllity
for therr emissions Therefore, the directors believe that
the Group has no reportable emissions for the year
ended 30 September 2015 (2014 i)

Donations

The Company made no pelitical or chantable donations
during the year (2014 nil} to organisations either within
or cutside of the EU

Gender Diversity

The Board are aware of the recommendations made In
the Lord Davtes Review 1n 2011 in respect to Board
dersity The Company's policy on diversity 1s included
In the section on the Nomination Commitiee on pages
25 and 26 of the Company’s Annual Report and
Accounts and this 1s applied when a new appointment
to the Board is required There has been no change in
the Board and at the year end the composition of the
Board was that all the directors were male The
compositicn of the Company’s employees 1s 66 6%
male and 33 3% female

Post Balance Sheet Events

There have been no significant post balance sheet
events of the Company or its subsidiary, other than
those already disclosed in the Report and Accounts



Matenal Contracts

+ Maedie Asset Management Limited (MAM)
The Board has appointed MAM, as its investment
manager, the terms of which are defined under an
Investment Agreement dated 13 January 2014 The
agreement dwvides the Company's investment
assets into a combination of a segregated portfolio
and the MAM in-house funds, with the Board having
the ability, subject to certain capagity constraints in
respect of the MAM funds, for the determination of
the asset allocation of ts investment assets, both
intially and on an on-going basis

The Investment Agreement provides that the
segregated portfolic 1s to be managed within MAM's
UK Equity Fund, with other investments being made
into the vanous MAM Funds, as decided by the
Board as part of therr asset allocation requirements
Further detalls on the allocation of the investments
managed by MAM are included in the Chief
Executive's Report on pages 6 to 8

The fees payable under the Investment Agreement
are detaled below

Management Performance

Portfollo/Fund” Fee Feg'
MAM UK Equity

Segregated Fund 075% pa Nil
MAM Tortoise Fund 150% pa 20%:!
MAM UK Income Fund 075% pa Nil
MAM Globa! Equity Fund 0-0 75% pa ™ Nil
MAM Global Focus Fund 0-100% pa™ Nil
MAM US Equity Fund 075%pa Nt

" Tha fees ame calcutated under the terms of the investment Agreement
or the relevant fund prospectus

© The fees chargad to the MAM UK Equity Segregated Fund ane
charged drectly to tha Company's Staterment of Comprehensive
income All other fund fees ame charged within tha relevant fund

1 The periormance fee enttiement onty 0cours once the 5% p a hurdle
has been exceeded and 13 calculated on a high water mark basis

* Tha management fea renge reflects the nvestments made nito
dffarent shara classes

The Investment Agreement entitles either party to
terminate the arrangement with six months’ notice
after an initial penod ending on 31 December 2015

* BNY Mellon Trust & Depositary (UK) Lmited
The Company has apponted BNYM (UK) Limited
(BNYM (UK)) to provide depositary services as
raquired by the AIFMD and certain other associated
services under the terms of a depositary agreement
dated 19 June 2014 The services provided by
BNYM (UK) as Depositary for the Company include

* general oversight responsibilities over the 1ssue
and cancellation of the Company's share capial,
the carrying out of net assel value calculations,
the application of income, and the ex-post review
of investment transactions,

+ monitonng of the Company's cash flows and
ensunng that all cash 1s booked in appropnate
accounts in the name of the Company or BNYM
(UK) acting on behalf of the Company, and

s ensuring that the Bank of New York Mellon SA/
NV, London Branch (BNYM) (to whom BNYM
{UK) has delegated the safekesping of all assets
held within the Company's Investment portfolic,
including those classed as financtal instruments
for the purpose of the AIFMD), In accordance
with the terms of a Global Custody Agreement,
retains custody of the Company’s financial
instruments 1IN segregated accounts so that they
can be clearly identified as belonging to the
Company and mantains records sufficient for
venfication of the Company's ownership nghts in
relation to assets other than financial instruments

No specific conflicts have been identified as ansing as
a result of the delegation of the provision of custody
and safekeeping services by BNYM (UK) to BNYM The
terms of the depositary agreement provide that, where
certain assets of the Company are invested in a
country whose laws require certain financial
instruments to be held in custedy by a local entity and
no such entity 15 able to satisfy the requirements under
the AIFMD in relation to use of delegates by
deposttaries, BNYM (UK) may still delegate its functions
to such a local entity and be fulty discharged of all
labity for loss of financial instruments of the Company
by such local entity
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The Depositary receves an annual fee for its services
on a shiding scale of 0 04% up to total gross portiolio
assets of £100 milhon and 0 035% between £100
millon and £250 mition and 0 03% above £250 millon,
payable monthly in ammears The depositary agreement
in place with BNYM (UK) and the related custody
agreement In place with BNYM contnues unless and
until terminated without cause upon the Company and
BNYM (UK} gmng not less than 90 days’ notice and
upon BNYM (UK) gving notice expirng not less than
18 months after the date of the agreernent, in each
case such notice to be effective only if a new
Depositary has been appointed

* Capita Sinclar Henderson Limited
The Board has appointed Capita Sinclar Henderson
Limited {trading as Capita Asset Services)
in November 2000 to act as Company Secretary
and undertake fund administraticn sermces The
terms of Capita Sinciarr Henderson Limited's
appontment are defined under a Secretana! and
Administration Services Agreement dated
6 February 2012 The agresment entitles either
party to termmnate the arrangement with twelve
months' notice Following a review of its business
operations, the Company provided the requisite
notice under the agreement to temmunate the
agreement as from 31 March 2016 (but which can
be extended, if necessary, and as agreed by the
parties} The Company has contemporaneously
agreed to continue with Company Secretanal
services from Capita Asset Services under a new
agreement, on terms to be agreed, as from 1 Apnl
2016 The review determined that following a
change to its business model following the
appointment of MAM as its investment manager, it
was more efficient If fund administration services
were undertaken in-house

Listing Rule Disclosure

The Company Is listed on the Londen Stock Exchange
and 1s subject to the UKLA listing rules These raqurre,
inter alia, vanous disclosures, which are included in this
report, and now also inciude the requirement, under
Listing Rule 9 8 4R, to disclose, where applicable,
certain specific tems separately These, as they apply
to the Company, in respect of the year ended

30 September 2015, are
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* that the Company has not capitalised any interest
dunng the year (all nterest charged has been
included in the Group and Company’s respective
Statement of Comprehensive Income),

= that no director warved or has agreed to wave any
entitiements dunng the year, nor for any future
periods,

* that the Company had no contracts of significance,
and

* that the Company's Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)
has, in accordance with its Trust Deed dated 19
January 1998, agreed to wawe its entitlement to
dividends in respect of its holdings of Company
shares, to the extent that they exceed 0 001p per
share Further detalls in respect of the EBT are
contained in note 21 to the accounts

AIFMD

The Company ts subject to the AIFMD, which requires
certan financia! and non-financial disclosures in
respect of Annual Reports

These disclosures are met by the Company in its
Annual Report In addition certain specific disclosures
are required which are

* HRemuneration
Total remuneration details for the directors {who are
considered to be code staff under the Directive) are
shown In the Report on Directors’ Remuneration
Remuneration details for staff are included in Note 7
to the accounts There was £40,000 of vanable
remuneration paid dunng the year

* |everage
Under the AIFMD, the Company 1s required to
disclose its actual leverage (calculated in
accordance with the Directive under the Gross &
Commitment methods) and ¢ must also set a it in
respect of leverage it can use The Company has
set a lmt of 1 5 times {1 being defined as no
leverage} and as at 30 September 2015 had
leverage of 1 21 under the Gross method and 123
under the Commitment method Note 27 to the
accounts prowides further details



* |nvestor Pra-investment nformation
The AIFMD requires that potential investors are
provided with certain information The Company
provides this information on its website at
www majedieinvestments com and there have been
no matenal changes since 22 July 2014 to the date
of this report

Disclosure of Information to Auditors
As far as each of the directors are aware

* there 15 no relevant audit information of which the
Company's Auditors are unaware, and

* they have taken all steps that they ought to have
taken as directors in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit nformation and to
establish that the Company's Auditors are aware of
that information

This confirnation s given and should be interpreted In
accordance with the prowisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP were re-appointed as Auditors on
14 January 2015 Emst & Young LLP have indicated
ther willingness to continue in office and a resolution
will be propesed at the Annual General Meeting to
re-appoint them as Auditors

Viability

The Directors have assessed the prospects of the
Company over the three year pencd to September
2018 The Directors believe that this penod 1s
appropnate as the Company I1s a long term investor in
equity markets

In ther assessment of the viability of the Company, the
Directors have considered each of the Company’s
pnncipal nsks and uncertainties The Directors have
also considered the Company’s income and
expenditure projections, the level of borrowings
{leverage of 1 21 {Gross method) and 1 23
{Commitment method) 1s well below the 1 5 limit and
the current borrowings of £33 9m are over 5 times
coverad by the current total assets) and the fact that
the Company's investments pnmanly {being 70 7% of
total assets as at 30 September 2015}, comprise
readily realisable secunties which can be sold to meet
funding requirements as necessary

Based on the Company's processes for monitonng
expenses, share pnce discounts or premium, the
allocation in its investment portfolio to an absolute
return fund, the Investment Manager's compliance with
the investment restnctions and objective, concentration
and hgudity nsk, the current large margin of safety over
the covenants on its debantures and financial controls,
the Directors have concluded that there 1s a reasonable
expectation that the Company will be able to continue
n operation and mest its habiliies as they fall due aver
the three year penod to September 2018

Going Concern

The Directors believe, after review and due consideration
of future forecast and cashfiow projections, that the
Company has adequate financial resources to continue
n operational existence for the foreseeable future For
this reason and taking account of the large number of
readily realisable investments held within its portfolio, the
Board continues to adopt the going concern basis in
prepanng the financial statemants

By Order of the Board

Capita Sinclar Henderson Limited
Company Secretary
4 December 2015
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Corporate Govermnance Statement forms part of the Dimctors' Report

This section of the Annual Report descnbes how the
Company, as a member of the AIC, has applied the
prnciples of the UK Corporate Governance Code as
published by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC}

in September 2014, as required by the FCA A copy of
the UK Corpoarate Governance Code can be found at
www frc org uk  The Board has considered the
pnncples and recommendations of the AIC Code of
Corporate Governance (AIC Code) by reference to the
AlC Corporate Governance Guide for investment
companies (AIC Guide) The AlC Code, as explained by
the AIC Guide, addresses all the pnnciples set out in the
UK Corporate Govemnance Code, as well as setting out
additional prnciples and recommendations on 1Ssues
that are of specific relevance to the Company A copy of
the AIC Code can be found at www theaic co uk

The Beard considers that reporting against the
prnciples and recommendations of the AIC Code, by
refarence to the AIC Guide (which incorporates the UK
Corporate Governance Code}), will provide information
to shareholders The Company has complied with the
recommendations of the AIC Code and the relevant
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
throughout the year ended 30 September 2015 except
as set out below

Senior Independent Director — The directors have
determined that the size of the Company’s Board does
not warrant the appointment of a sentor Independent
director

Internal Audit function — The Company does not have
an internal audit function due to its accounting,
administration, company secretanal and custody
arrangements being outsourced to the parties detaled
on pages 21 to 22

Shareholder information — The Company does not
provide, although relevant information 1s disclosed, a
complete portfolio isting Certain small legacy
realisation holdings are no longer matenal or relevant,
and the provision of fuller information would be
contrary to public information prowided by MAM

The Board has considered the FRC guidance on nsk
management, internal control and related financtal and
business reporting dated September 2014 that applies
from 1 October 2014 Further details are contained on
page 31 in the Report of the Audit Committee
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The Company

The Company has a long history of self management
which includes the Company being a self managed AlF
under the AIFMD In complying with the more detailed
aspects of best corporate governance practice, the
Board takes into account that the Company I1s a listed
investment trust and the Barlow family, as a whole,
owns about 53% of the shares in 1ssue

Although the family sharehclding in total 1s signfficant,
there are a number of Indwidual farmily members and
trusts represented by many separate shareholdings
The pnncipal abjective of the Board of directors
continues to be to maximise total shareholder return
for all shareholders

Board of Directors

The Company’s Board of directors 1s responsible for the
overall stewardship of the Company, including corporate
strategy, corporate governance, nsk management and
compliance with regulations (including its responsibilities
as AIFM under the AIFMD), overall investment policy,
asset allocation and geanng The Chaiman s
responsible for leadership of the Board and ensunng its
effectiveness on all aspects of its role, and that all
Directors receve accurate, tmely and clear information
Its composttion satisfies the requirements of the AIC
Code and 1s composed of an independent Chairman,
two non-executive directors and Mr JWM Barlow who 15
the CEO

Biographical details of the directors are shown on
page 16

Messrs AJ Adcock, PD Gadd and RDC Henderson are
considered to be independent as defined by the AIC
Code as, in the opinion of the Board, each 1s
independent In character and judgment and there are
no relatonships or creumstances relating to the
Company that are likely to affect their judgment
However, the Board considers that all directors exercise
ther jJudgements in an independent manner The
Charman's other commitments are i his biography on

page 16

The Board meets at least six times in each calendar
year and its pnncipal focus Is the strategic development
of the Group, Investment policy and the control of the
business Key matters relating to these areas including
the menitonng of financial performance are reserved for
the Board and set out in a formal statement




Dunng the year ended 30 September 2015, the Company
held sx Board meetings, three Audit Committee
meetings, one Management Engagement Committes
meeting, cne Nomination Committee meeting and two
Remuneration Committee meetings Attendance at
these Board and Commuttee mestings is detalled below

Number of meetings
Board Audl! Management Remuneration Nomination

Engagement
Directors 6 3 1 2 1
AJ Adcock B 3 1 2 1
JWM Barlow 6 n/a n/a n/a n‘a
ADC Henderson 8 3 1 2 1
PD Gadd B 3 1 2 1

Since the Company's financial year end the Company
held two Board mestings, one Audit Committes, one
Management engagement, one Noemination Committee
and one Rermuneration Committee mesting All Board
and Committes members attended their respective
meetings

The Board has undertaken a formal and ngorous
evaluation of its own performance and of its
Commuttees through the circulation of a comprehensive
queshonnaire Hawing discussed the rasults it
concluded that the Board and its Committees continue
to function effectively and that the Chairman’s and
directors’ other commitments are such that all directors
are capable of devoting sufficient time to the Company

The Board has agreed and established a procedure for
directors 1n furtherance of their duties to take
independent professional adwice If necessary, at the
Company's expense

The Board recognises the need for new directars to
recenve an appropriate inducton Existing directors
receve regular updates, ncluding in respect of
regulatory and governance matters and development,
and traning needs were discussed as part of the
Board evaluabcon process

Directors” and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnities

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’
Lability Insurance which provides cover for legal
expenses under certain circumstances The Company's
Articles of Association take advantage of statutory
provisions to indemnify the directors against certain

habiities owed to third parties even where such habihty
anses from conduct amounting to negligence or
breach of duty or of trust In additton, under the terms
of appointment of each director, the Company has
agreed, subject to the restnctions and limitations
imposed by statute and by the Company's Articles of
Assocation, to indemnify each director aganst all
costs, expenses, losses and habiities incurred In
execution of his office as director or otherwise in
relation to such office Save for such mdemmity
provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association and
in the directors’ terms of appontment, there are no
qualfying third party indemnity provisions in force

Committees
The Board has established the following Committees

+ The Audit Committee compnses
Mr RDC Henderson {Chaiman), Mr PD Gadd and
Mr AJ Adcock Mr JWM Barlow and representatives
of the Auditors are invited to attend meetings of the
Committee It 1s considered that Mr RDC
Henderson, who 1s a Chartered Accountant, has
recent relevant financial expenence The Board has
agreed the terms of reference for the Audit
Commuttes which meets at least twice a year

Further details on the work of the Audit Committee
are detaled in the Report of the Audit Committee on
pages 29 to 31

¢+ The Nomination Committee compnses
Mr AJ Adcock (Chairman} and all of the non-
executive drectors Mr JWM Barlow attends
meetings at the request of the Committee, from
tme to time The poiicy of the Committee is to
consider appointments to the Board of directors in
the context of the requirements of the business, its
need to have a balanced and sffective Board and
succession planning Gender and diversity are
considerad by the Commuittes and are taken into
account when evaluating the skills, knowledge and
expenence desirable to fill each vacancy but all
appointments to the Board are made on mert The
Committee has not set any measurable objectives in
respect of this policy

The Company's Articles of Association require a
director appointed dunng the year to retire and seek
appointment by shareholders at the next Annual
General Meeting and alt directors must seek

REPOAT & ACCOUNTS 2015

25



Corporate Governance Statement

re-appomntment at least every three years All
directors are apponted for a term of three years
after appointment or re-appointment by
shareholders at a general meeting A director’s
appointment may be terminated by the Company or
the director by providing one month's notice The
Articles of Assoctation can be amended by
shareholders at a General Mesting

Towards the end of each fixed term the Nomination
Commuttee and the Board will consider whether to
renew a particular appointment

Directors’ terms and conditions for appointment are
sat out In letters of appointment, which are avalable
for Inspection at the registered office of the
Company and will be available 15 minutes before
the start of and dunng the Company's Annual
General Meeting Details of the CEQ's employment
contract can be found in the Remuneration Report
on pages 32 10 35

The Nomination Committee met on 15 October
2015 to consider the re-appointment of directors at
the Company's Annual General Meeting Based on
the outcome of the Board performance evaluation
process and on the basis that they continued to
make valuable contnbutions and exercise judgement
and exprass opinions In an Independent manner, the
Committee has decided to recommend the
re-appointment of Messrs PD Gadd and JWM
Barlow

The Committee believes the directors provide the
necessary breadth of skills angd expenence to run
the Company

* The Remuneration Committee compnses
Mr PD Gadd {Charman), Mr AJ Adcock and
Mr RDC Henderson Mr JWM Bardow 1s invited to
attend and participate as appropnate Further
details on the work of the Remuneration Committee
are included in the Report on Directors’
Remuneration on pages 32 to 35

+ The Management Engagement Commuittes
(MEC) compnises
Mr PD Gadd {Chaiman), and all of the non-
executive drrectors Mr JWM Barlow attends
meetings at the request of the Committes, from
time to time  The Board has agreed terms of
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reference for the Committee, which meets at least
once a year to consider the performance of the
lnvestment Manager, the terms of the Investment
Manager's engagement and to consider the
continued appointment of the Investment Manager
The MEC met on 15 October 2015 and
recommended that MAM be retaned as Investment
Manager In determiming therr recommendation, the
MEC concluded that MAM have an excellent track
record and offer a broad range of products to meet
the Company's Investment policy

Following the recommendation from the MEG, the
Board has concluded that it 1s 1n the best interests of
shareholders that MAM should continue to be the
Investment Manager of the Company under its existing
terms

In addition to the Investment Management role, the
Board has delegated to external third parties the
deposttary and custodial services, the day to day
accounting, company secretanal services,
administration and regsstration services The MEC
annually reviews ther perforrnance and therr contracts

The terms of reference of the Company's Gommittees
are avallable on request from the Company Secretary
or from the Company's website

Conflicts of Interest

The Directors have declared any conflicts or potential
conflict of interest to the Board of directors which has
the authonty to approve such sttuations The Company
Secretary maintans the Register of Directors' Conflicts
of Interasts which I1s reviewed quarterly by the Board
and when changes are notified The directors advise
the Company Secretary and Board as soon as they
become aware of any conficts of interest Directors
who have conflicts of interest do not take part in
discussions which relate to any of ther conflicts

It 1s the responsibility of each indwvidual director to
avord an unauthonsed conflict situaton ansing He
must request authorisation from the Board as soon as
he becomes aware of the possibility of a situational
conflict ansing



The Board ts responsible for considenng Directors’
requests for authonsation of situational conficts and for
deciding whether or not the situational confict should
be authonsed The factors to be considered will Include
whether the situational conflict could prevent the
director from properly performing his duties, whether it
has, or could have, any impact on the Company and
whether it could be regarded as likely to affect the
ludgement and/or actions of the director in question
When the Board 1s deciding whether to authorise a
conflict or potential confict, only directors who have no
interest in the matter being considered are able to take
the relevant decision, and in taking the decision the
directors must act in a way they consider, in good
faith, will be most iikely to promote the Company’s
success The Directors are able to mpose limits or
conditions when giving authonsation if they think this 1s
appropnate in the circumstances

The Directors must also comply with the statutory rules
requinng company directors to declare any interest in
an actual or proposed transaction or arrangement with
the Company

Relations with Shareholders

Members of the Board hold meetings with the
Company's pnncipal shareholders and prospective
investors to develop an understanding of the views of
shareholders and to discuss the Company's strategy
and financial and investment performance

Any issues raised by shareholders are reported to the
full Board Shareholders are encouraged to attend the
Annual General Meeting and to participate In
proceedings Shareholders wishing to contact the
directors to raise speciffic 1ssues can do so directly at
the Annual General Meeting or by wnting to the
Company Secretary

in the Annual Report each year the Directors seek to
provide shareholders with information in sufficient detal
to allow them to obtain a reasonable understanding of
recent developments affecting the business and the
prospects for the Company in the year ahead The
vanous sections of the Strategic Report provide
further information

The Company has three investor savings schemes
which provide shareholders with cost effective and
convenient ways of investng Communication of up-to-
date infarmaticn 1s provided through the website at
www majedieinvestments com

Voting policy

The exercise of voting nghts attached to the
Company's investment portfolio has been delegated to
MAM In the absenca of explicit instructions from the
Board MAM subscnbe to the NAPF Voting Issues
Service (1SS} which forms part of their voting process
MAM provides a quarterty report detailing the voting
activity on the Company’s investment portfolio which
includes details of the votes made as well as the
reasons explaning the raticnale for the voting decision

MAM are required to include on therr website a
disclosure about the nature of thewr commitment to the
FRC's Stewardship Code and details may be found at
www majedie com

Internal Control Review

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for
the systems of internal control relating to the Company
and its subsidiary and for rewiewing the effectveness of
those systems An ongoing process has been in
existence for sorne time to identify, evaluate and
manage nsks faced by Group companies This has
been refined further following the introduction of the
AIFMD, which requires the Board, as AIFM, to
implement effective nsk management polictes and
procedures Key procedures are also in place to provide
effective financial control over the Group’s operations

The nsk management process and systems of intemal
control are designed to manags rather than eliminate
the nsk of fallure to achieve the Company's objectives It
should be recognised that such systems can only
provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against
matenal misstatement or loss
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A review of internal control and nsk management
systems are undertaken by the Board or the Audit
Committee In the context of the Company's ovarall
investment objective The review covers business
strategy, investment management, operational,
complhance and financial nsks facing the Company and
its subsidiary In amwving at its jJudgement of the nature
of the nsks facing Group comparues, the Board or the
Audit Committee has constdered the Group's
operations n the light of the following factors

— the nature and extent of nsks which it regards as
acceptabls to bear within the overall business
objective,

- the likelihcod of such nsks becoming a reality, and

- the investment Manager’s abilty to reduce the
incidence and impact of nsk on performance and
the relevant controls

Further details relating to nsk management, nsk
assessments, and internal controls are contaned in the
Report of the Audit Committee on pages 29 to 31

In accordance with the AIC and the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have carrned out a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control as it has operated over the year and up to the
date of approval of the repert and accounts

By Order of the Board

Capita Sinclarr Henderson Limited
Company Secretary
4 December 2015

28  MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS FLC




Report of the Audit Committee

The Report of the Audit Committee forms part of the Comomte Govemance Statement

During the year ended 30 Septemnber 2015 the Audit
Committes compnsed independent non-executive
directors, being Mr RDC Henderson {Charrmany}, Mr AJ
Adoock and Mr PD Gadd Mr JWM Barfow was also
invited to attend meetings The Committea usually
meets twice a year in which it reviews the Half-Yearty
Financial Report and the Annual Report

The Company Secretary, Capita Sinclar Henderson
Limited {trading as Capita Asset Services), acts as
Secretary to the Committee and its terms of reference
are avallable on request or may be obtained from the
Company’s website

Responsibilities
The Committee’s responsibilities include

+ monitonng the integnty of the financial statements of
the Company (including that they are considered, as
a whole, to be far, balanced and understandable},

s reviewing the Company’s internal financial controls
and risk management systermns,

« making recommendations to the Board, for 1t to put
to the shareholders for ther approval in general
mesting, In relation to the appointment of the
external auditor, monitonng the external auditor's
effectiveness, independence and developing and
Implementting a pohicy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-audit services

In respect of the year under review the Committee met
three times, in May, July and November 2015 The
purpose of the meetings was to review the Group's
Half-Yearty Financial Report and Annual Report
respectively, and to review the internal control
environments of outsourced service providers, to
overses the relationshup with the Auditor (which
Includes recommendations on fees, approval of therr
terms of engagement and assessing their
independence and effectiveness)

Sigruficant 1ssues related to the Financial Statements
In respect of the year ended 30 September 2015, and
following robust assessment of the nsks facing the
Company, the Committee considered the following
1ssues to be significant to the financial statements

Valuation of Investments

The Company Is a global equity Investment trust which
invests in many companes around the world, the
majorty of which are quoted and traded on a
recognised stock exchange However, some of the
Company's investments are held in companies that are
not quoted or traded on a recognised stock exchange
and for which pnce discovery reguires careful analysis
and judgement Although these are small in number
(and also usually by value) they do include the
investment iIn MAM and, as such, they are significant
to the determination of the Company and Group's net
asset value

Investments in quoted companies are valued by the
Company’s external Fund Admiristrator using prices
from third party pncing sources The Fund
Adrministrator reviews all pnces and those that exceed
a pre-determined movernent threshold are subject to
further verification checks using addhional pncing
sources

For unquoted Investments, the CEQ recommends a fair
value for the relevant investment to the Committee
using the Company’s policy as set out in note 1 to the
Accounts on pages 53 to 58 The unqucted
investments are subject to review by the Committes
and the Auditor (at the year end and subject to audit
matenality)

The farr value of MAM s usually assessed twice a year
by the directors and I1s appraved by the Audit
Committee The fair value calculation 1s formulaic, with
the significant input in assessing the pnce being the
earnings of MAM A 5% Increase/decrease in MAM's
earnings would result in an increase/decrease of 4 3%
n the carrying value of MAM

Ownership of Investments

The Company's investments are held in safe custody
by BNYM (UK) as depositary The Commitiee receves
regular reports on BNYM {UK}'s internal controls

The Charman of the Committee wilt be avalable at the
Annual General Meeting to answer any questions
relating to the Annual Report
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External Audit

The Company's external auditor 1 Ernst & Young LLP, who were appotnted on 18 January 2008, replacing Deloitte &
Touche LLP following an open tender process {there are no restnctions or impediments te the external audit
tendenng process} Given its relative size and nature of operattons the Company has no formal tendenng policy in
place

The Company engages Ernst & Young LLP to undertake the annual year end audtt It was agreed, following a review
of market practice and audit costs and the Company's nature and scope of activities, that a review of the Half Yearty
Financial Report was no longer necessary Ernst & Young LLP attend the annual accounts Audit Committee meeting

In November

In determining the effectivenass of the external audit the Committee takes account of the following factors

Factor

Assessment

The Audit Partner

The Audt Team

The Audit approach

The role of management

The communications and formal reporting
by the Auditor

The support, insights and added value
provided to the Committee

The independence and objectivity of
the Auditor

Extent to which the partner demonstrates a strong understanding of
the business and industry and the challenges that the Company faces
Additionally 1s committed to audit qualty, whose opinion s valued and
sought after

Extent to which the audd team understand the business and industry,
are properly resourced and expensnced

The Audit approach 1s discussed with managament and targets the
significant 1ssues early (and any new requirements as a result of new
regulations etc), 1Is communicated properly, 1s appropnate for the
Company's business and industry and includes an appropnate level of
matenality

Information prowided by management 15 tmely and correct with proper
work papers Accounting systems and internal controls work properly
to enable proper information and an audit trail to be provided

Management and the Committee kept appropnately informed as the
audit progresses ~ a no surprises basis 1s adopted The formal report Is
appropnate and contans all the relevant matenial matters

Guidance given to the Committee for best practice with provision of
updates and or bnefings or training between Committee meetings

Complies with the FRC ethical standards and has the reguired degree
of objectmty

In assessing the effectiveness of the audt, the Committea receves management assessments and reports from the
Auditor and additionally does, from time to time, receve assessments on the auditor from the FRC

As a result of its review, the Committes 15 satisfied that, in respect of the year ended 30 September 2015 the
external audit process 1s effective and 1 recommends the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as Auditors at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting
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Policy for non-audit services

From time to time ¢t may be appropnate and cost
effective for the external auditor to provide services but
other services should only be provided where
alternative prowiders do not exist or where it 1S cost
effective or in the Group’s interest for the external
auditor to provide such services In the year under
review, the auditor provided a review of the Company’s
debenture covenant reporting (to the trustee for the
debenture holders), which 1s separately disclosed as
Other Assurance Services In the Accounts Any areas
of concern are raised with the Board cf the Company

In determining auditor Independence the Committee
assesses all relationships with the auditor and receves
from the auditer information on s independence policy
along with safeguards and procedures it has developed
to counter percenvad threats to its objectmty The auditor
also provides confirmation that it 1s Independent within
the meaning of ali regulatory and professional
requirements and that the objectivity of the audit 15 not
imparred Following its review, the Committes 15
satisfied that they are independent hawving fulfiled ther
obligations to both the Company and its shareholders

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group operates nsk management and internal
control systems appropnate for entities operating in the
financial services sector and addiionally as appropnate
to s size and the scope of its activities In reviewing
these systems, the Committes, and or the Board,
recaive regular reports The Commuttee also receves
control reports from its key third party outsourced
service providers on the effectiveness of therr own
internal control systems and procedures Any particular
1ssues identified are documented and followed up by
the Committee or the Board in following meetings

The Company does not have an nternal audit function
as required under the UK Corporate Governance
Code The Committes has considered this matter and
15 of the opinion that there 1s no need at the present
time for the Company to have an internal audit function
since there are considered to be adequate checks and
balances in operation In particular the Company
operates with Investment Managemnent services being
undertaken by MAM, Fund Adrministration and
Company Secretanal functions by Capita Asset
Services and Depositary services by BNYM {UK)
Limited {with custody being delegated to BNYM)

For the year ended 30 September 2015 the Group's nsk
management and internal controls werne subject to review
by the Committee and as such the Commuitee considers
that they have been, and are, adequate and effective

Risk Assessment

The Audit Committes considered the revisions to the
UK Code which required a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the Company, including those that
would threaten its business model, future performance,
solvency or hquidity The principal nsks facing the
Company and how they are being managed are
detalled on pages 14 to 15 in the Business Review
section of the Strategic Report The Committee
robustly reviews these nsks and mitigating controls in
its meetings 1IN May and Novemnber (and additionally the
Board, at each mesting, reviews a Key Risks Summary
which outines the key nsks, and changes thereto}

Compliance, Whistleblowing and Fraud

The Company operates using an outsourced business
model, n common with other investmant trusts As
such the Committee and the Board racewve reports
regarding the compbance function of the Investment
Manager and Fund Administrator including procedures
for whistieblowing and for detecting fraud and bnbery

The Committee also seeks assurances from senice

providers that appropriate whistieblowing procedures
are In place which enable therr staff to raise concerns
about possible iImpropneties in a confidential manner

On behalf of the Board

£ -

RDC Henderson
Chairman of the Audit Committee
4 December 2015
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Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Annual Statement

In respect of the financial year ended 30 September
2015, the Company received shareholder permission to
1ssue up to 9 99 percent of its then issued share capital,
amaountmng to 5,200,000 shares, and FCA permission to
operate a block isting programme In the financial year
605,000 new shares were issued, with an additonal
235,476 shares sold by the Company's EBT, and it 1s
proposed that the authonty {o 1ssue shares is renewed
at the 2016 Annual General Meeting There were no
changes to the composition of the Board dunng the
year From 1 October 2014, and as approved at the
2015 Annual General Meeting, directors’ fees increased
by 5%

At its meeting In October 2015, the Remuneration
Committee has decided that there should be no change
to the remuneration of the non-executve directors in
respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2015
This decision was made in the context of the previous
Increase (n directors’ fees and prevaling market
conditions

In respect of the remuneration of the CEQ, Mr JWM
Bartow, under the new bonus scheme approved at the
2015 Annual General Meeting, he wilt be entitled to a
bonus of £25,000 in any financial year in which the
Company’s 1ssued share capital 1s ncreased by at least
5%, nsing to £50,000 on a straight line basis If it
increases by 10% No bonus would be paid in the
absence of any such mcrease, and no other bonus
arrangements have been proposed Dunng the financial
year ended 30 Septernber 2015 a total of 840,476
shares were tssued (compnsed of 805,000 new shares
1ssued and 235,476 shares sold by the Company’s EBT),
representing 1 6% of the Company's share capral at

1 October 20714 (excluding any shares held in the
Company's EBT) Mr Barlow did not therefore qualify for
a performance bonus under this bonus scheme, in the
financial year, he did however receive a £40,000 bonus
in respect of the year ended 30 September 2014, which
was approved at the 2015 Annual General Mesting, for
his additional work in connection with the restructunng
of the Company and the appointment of MAM

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC

The Remuneration Committee has decided that,
following a review of market conditions, Mr Barlow's
basic salary will Increase by 2 5% as from 1 October
2015 There 8 no change to his other benefits nor to the
bonus scheme

s

P D Gadd
Charman of the Rermuneration Committee
4 December 2015

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

In accordance with the requirements of Schedule 8 of
the Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, as amended
(the Regulations}), an ordinary resolution to approve the
directors’ remuneration policy was approved at the
Company's Annual General Meeting on 14 January
2015 It1s proposed that the approved policy remain in
force until the annual general meeting of the Company in
2018, at which tme a further resolution will be

proposed The approved policy 1s avallable for inspection
by shareholders on the Company’s website at

www majediginvestments com




AUDITED SECTION

Annual Report
The remuneration of the directors for the year ended
30 September 2015 was as follows

Salary Bonus/Fixed Taxable Total
& Foes Protit Share Berefits Ramunacaton

2015 2014 215 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 FOQQ

Directors Interests

The Company does not have any requirement or
guidelines for any dwector to own shares in the
Company

The interests of the directors of the Company, (including
therr connected perscns}, In secunties of the Company
as at 30 September 2015, and as at 4 December 2015
ars as follows

Non-exacutive

Diractors No of Ay pald

AJ Adcock 79 75 ™ 75 ordinary 0 1p shares

PD Gadd 2 58 2 58 Director Type of halding 30 4 Dacomber

RDC Henderson 2 @ 2 9 2015 2015

ceo Mr AJ Adcock Bansficlal 50000 50000

JWM B {feea ony) 14 14 Mr RDC Henderson Bensficiat 4700 470

Foes sub total 143 178 143 178 MrPDOudd Benicil 40 448 40443

WM Barlow 19 84 40 50 7 6 =218 tap ™M WMBaiow Benafical 892 083 692 083
{other remuneration) Non benaficial 1959 185 1950165

Total 32 280 40 50 7 6 359 316

Mr JWM Barlow's taxable benefits relate to healthcare
costs (he receives nNo pension contnbutions) His bonus
of £40,000 was in respect of the year ended

30 September 2014 for his additional work in
connaction with the restructuning of the Company and
the appointment of MAM This bonus was pad following
approval at the 2015 Annual General Meeting Directors’
fees are set at £78,750 par annum for the Chairman and
£28,350 basic, per annum, for each of the other non-
executive directors In addition there 1s a £3,150 per
annum supplement for each of the Charman of the
Audit and Remuneration Committees

The CEQ does not receve any fees from 1 Apnl 2014

There have been no payments to past directors dunng
the financial year ended 30 September 2015, whether
for loss of office or otherwise

Scheme interests awarded dunng the financial year
No awards were made to directors during the year
under the Company’s Long Term Incentive Pian, and this
plan has now expired, and the Company’s EBT has
been wound up

NON AUDITED SECTION

Performance

Set out below 15 a graph showing the total shareholder
return attnbutable to the ordinary shares in the Company
in respact of the seven financial years ended

30 September 2015 and to a hypothetrcal portfolio
constructed accarding to a benchmark equity index,
calculated as 70% FTSE All-Share Index and 30% FTSE
World ex UK Index (Stering} Although the Company
abandoned this as an overall benchmark i 2010 1t
remains as tha comparatar for the purpose of this graph
as it was the benchmark at the start of the penod and it
includes a weighting to overseas assets suitable in
respact of the Company’s assets

Total Shareholder Return v Benchmark
7 years ended 30 September 2015

200%
180%
180%

140%

100%
80%

80%
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 15

— Total Sharehoider Return
—— BenciuTiark
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Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Remuneration of the director undertaking the role of
Chief Executive Officer

The table helow sets out the remuneration of the
director of the Company who fulfils a role most closely
corresponding to that of chief executive officer (CEQ)
over the preceding seven financial years

Current year

variable Prior year or
remuneration future year
awarded vrs  awards vested

Director maximum  vrs maximum

undertaking Total potential potential
Year ended  role of CEQ remuneration valus value
30 Sep 2015 Mr JWM Barlow £215 849 44% 0%
30Sep 2014 Mr JWM Barlow £153353 0% 0%
30 Sep 2013 Mr /WM Barlow £143 531 0% 0%
308ep 2012 Mr. WM Barlow £168 640 0% 0%
308ep 2011 Mr GP Ahema £185 040 % 0%
30 Sen 2010 Mr GP Anerna £260 000 100% %
30S8ep 2008 Mr GP Aherna £147 000 0% 0%
30 Sep 2008  Mr RE Clarke £802 994 85% 83%

*  Reflects tha £40 000 bonus {as detaled in the Annual Statement) as against
the maximum bonus potental of £90 000

The table below sets out the changes in the disclosed

elements of the director undertaking the role of CEO as

compared to employees of the Group

Fixed Variable
Year snded remunsration Benefits mmuneration

CEQ Staff CEQ Staft CEQ Staff
30 Septemper 2015 +145% +279% +160% 158% +1000% 00%

Notes

1 The change n the CED fixed remuneraton reflects the ful year impact of
reverting 1o a salary as compared to fis premous lower pronty proft share as
a partner of Javeln Capital LLP Average staff {xe0 remuneraton nas
increased refiecting the ful year mpact of the changs 1 compositon of staff
numbers after the restructunng cost of Imng Increases and as above the il
year mpact of reverting to a salary from a pnonty proft share as above

2 The percentage ncreasa In bensfits shown includes the increased costs by
the relevant providers and the full year impact of the change in the staff
compas.ton following the restructunng  however given the small staff numbers
involved the actual change in monstary terms 1S quie sma!

3 The change represents the bonus pad io Mr WM Bariow in the year as
explanad apove There were no staff Donuses N the year

34 MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLG

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below sets out, in respect of the financial year
ended 30 September 2015 and the preceding financial
ysar

a} the actual administration expenses expenditure of the
Group,

b) the remunsration paid o or recevable by all members
of the Group (iIncluding for this purpose partnership
distnbutions to the partners of Javelin Capital),

¢) the distnbutions made to shareholders by way of
drvdend or share buyback

fm
8
5
4
K]
2
[}
2014 2015
B Admn 8 Total staff B Owdends
expensas femuneration

Note

The items kstad in the tabie above are as requrred by the Aegutations with the
excepion ol adminstrative expenses for the Group which has been ncludsd as
tne Dractors beleve that it wil help ad the undarstandng of tha relatve
wmportanca of the spend on staff pay



Statement of implementation of Remuneration Policy in
respect of the financia! year ending 30 September 2016

Non-Executive Directors

The Remuneration Committee will review directors’ fees
dunng the financial year, and may recommend an
inflation related ncrease, but does not expect to
recommend any other change in the absence of
unforeseen circurnstances

CEQ

The Remuneration Committes intends 1o review the
salary of the CEO in light of prevailing market condtions
It intends to operate Mr JWM Barlow’s bonus scheme in
accordance with its terms as set out In the
Remuneration Policy

Constderation by the directors of rernuneration
Ounng the financial year, the members of the
remuneration committee were PD Gadd (chaur}, AJ
Adcock and RDC Henderson No person provided
services or advice to the Remuneration Committee
which matenally assisted the committes

Statement of voting at General Mesting

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
15 January 2015, resolutions were proposed by the
Company to approve the Report on Directors’
Remuneration for the year ended 30 September 2014
and to approve the revised Directors’ Remuneration
Policy For both resolutions 97 7% of the votes cast
were in favour with 2 3% aganst and 0 0% of the voles
being withheld

Basis of preparation

This report has been prepared In accordance with the

reguirements of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium

Sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)

Regulations 2008, as amended, as required by the

Comparues Act 2006 The report also meets the relevant

requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial

Conduct Authonty and descrbes how the Board has

applied the pnnciples refating to the directors’ I
remuneration

The Report on Directors’ Remuneratton on pages 32 to
35 was approved by the Board on 4 December 2015

On behalf of the Board

P,

PD Gadd
Charrman of the Remuneration Committes
4 December 2015
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual
Report and the Group financial statements in
accordance with apphcable United Kingdom law and
those IFRSs as adopted by the European Union Under
Company Law the Directors must not approve the
Group financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they present faiy the financial posttion, financial
performance and cash flows of the Group for that
penod In prepanng the Group financial statements the
Directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies in accordance
with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Emrors and then apply
them consistently,

* present information, Including accounting policies, in
a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information,

* provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific requirements in IFRSs 1s Insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the
Group’s financial position and financial performance,

« state that the Group has complied with IFRSs,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained In the financial statements,

+ maks judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent, and

+ state that the Annual Report, taken as a whole, 1S
farr, balanced and understandable and prowides
sufficient information to allow shareholders to
assess the Group's performance

The Directors are rasponsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and enable them to ensure that the Group
financial statements comply with the Companies Act
20086 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also
responstble for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other rmegulanties

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are
also responsible for prepanng a Strategic Report, a
Corporate Governance Statement, Directors'
Remuneration Report and a Directors’ Report that
comply with that law and those regulations

The Directors of the Company, whose names are
shown on page 16 of this Report, each confirm to the
best of therr knowlsdge that

» the financial statements, which have been prepared
In accordance with applicable accounting standards,
give a true and far view of the assets, lliabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of the Group,

* the Annual Report includes a farr review of the
development and performance of the business and
the position of the Group, together with a
descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties
that it faces, and

+ they consider that the Annual Report, taken as a
whole, is farr, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's performance, business
model and strategy

By order of the Board

Prdren  Pdco ck

Andrew J Adcock
Chairman
4 December 2015



Report of the Depositary

Report of the Depositary to the shareholders of
Majedie Investments PLC

Depositary’s responsibilities

The Depositary is responsible for the safekeeping of all
custodial assets of the Company, for venfying and
maintaining a record of all other assets of the Company
and for the collection of Income that anses from

those assets

it 1s the duty of the Depositary to take reasonable care
to ensure that the Gompany 1s managed in accordance
with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers
Directive {AIFMD), the FUND Sourcebook and the
Company's Instrument of Incorporation, in relation to
the calculation of the net asset value per share and the
application of ncome of the Company The Depositary
also has a duty to monitor the Company’s compliance
with investment restrichons and leverage Imits set in its
offenng documents

Report of the Depositary to the shareholders of
Majedie Investments PLC for the year ended 30
September 2015

Hawving carned out such procedures as we consider
necessary to discharge our responsibilities as
Depositary of the Company, it 1s our opinion, based on
the information available to us and the explanations
provided, that in all matenal respects the Company,
acting through the AIFM has been managed in
accordance with AIFMD, the FUND sourcebook, the
Instrument of Incorporation of the Company in relation
to the calculation of the net asset value per share, the
application of income of the Company, and with
Iinvestment restnctions and leverage Iimits set in s
offenng documents

For and on behalf of

BNY Melion Trust & Depositary (UK) Limited
160 Queen Victona Strest

London EC4V 4LA

REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015

37




38

Report of the Independent Auditor

Indapendent Auditer's Report to the Members of Majadie Investments PLC

Opinton on financal statements
In our opinion the financial statements

* gve a true and far view of the state of the Group
and of the Parent Company's affars as at
30 September 2015 and of its profit for the year
then ended 30 September 2015,

* have been property prepared In accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

What we have audited

Wae have audited the financial statements of Majedie
Investments PLC for the year snded 30 September
2015 which compnse the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated and Gompany Statements of Changes in
Equity, the Consolidated and Company Batance
Sheets, the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow
Statements and the related notes 1 to 28 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in ther
preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Group's members, as
a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to
them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Gompany's members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fulty in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement sat out on page 36, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and farr view Our responsibility is to audit and express
an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Audihing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Involves obtaning ewidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to grve reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or emor This
includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the Group and Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the
overall presentaticn of the financial statements In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report to Wentify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that 1s apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit If we become aware of any
apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistenctes we
consider the iImphcations for our report

Our assessment of risk of material misstaterment

We identified the following nsks of matenal
misstatement that had the greatest effect on the overall
audrt strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit,
and directing the efforts of the engagement team The
Audit Committee have set out their assessment of the
significant 1ssues in relation to the financial statements
cn page 29 The table below includes our responses to
the risks



Risk Identified Qur Response
Valuation and existence of Majedie Wa reviewed the basis for determiming the far value of the investment In
Asset Management Limited (MAM} MAM and considered the appropnateness of the valuation methodology We
consutted with our specialist valuations team in respect of this

Incorrect valuation of, or incorrect title

to, the Company's unquoted With reference to the shareholder agreement we checked any restnctions on
investment in Majedie Asset the sale of the Company's stake iIn MAM and considered the impact of these
Management Limited {MAM) restnctions on the far value as defined by IFRS 13

We agreed inputs into the valuation model to source documentation and
re-performed the calculations prepared by management in order to confirm
their anthmetical accuracy

We confirmed that the valuation had been calculated in accordance with the
methodology set out m the shareholder agreement

We obtained independent confirmation from the custodian of the Group's
investment in MAM

Income recognition We performed the following procedures

Income i1s predominantly compnsed of ® We agreed a sample of dvdends receved to an independent source and
dvidends receivable from quoted bank statements

tnvestments There I1s a nsk of
incomplete or inaccurate income
recognition through fallure to
recognise proper income entitiements « We reviewed the dvidends recewved for any special distnbutions and
or apply appropnate accounting ensured that these have been accounted for cormectly

treatment

* We agreed the dvidends from MAM to mesting minutes at a MAM level
and agreed the recelpt to bank statements

* Wa reviewed the treatment of the ncome receved and determined
whether the treatment was in Ine with the policy
Valuation and existence of the We performed the following procedures
rnvestment portfolio (excluding MAM)

* We agreed year end pnices for all listed investments to an indepsndent
source

* Wa reviewed the portfolio of investments and note that, with the exception
of the investment in MAM, the remaining unquoted investments are
individually and cumulatively below our matenality threshold From review
of the investment holdings and performance of these investments we have
not identified circumstances to suggest that a matenal wnte up In the
valuation of these investments would be appropnate

We cbtained independent confirrmation from the custodian of the Group's
investments and agreed this to the Group’s books and records
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Report of the Independent Auditor

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Majedie Investments PLC

Our application of matenality

We detenmined planning materality for the Group to be
£1,498k (2014 £1,340K), which 1s 1% of total equity
This provided a basis for determining the nature, timing
and extent of our nsk assessment procedures,
rdentifying and assessing the nsks of matenal
misstatement and deterrmining the nature, timing and
extent of further audit procedures We have denved our
matenality calculation based on a proportion of total
equity as we consider it to be the most important
financial metnc on which shareholders would judge the
performance of the Group and Company

On the basis of our nsk assessments, together with
our assessment of the Group and Company's overall
control environment, our judgment was that overall
performance materalty (| @ our tolerance for
rmisstaterment n an indvidual account or balance} for
the Group should be 75% of planning matenality, being
£1,124k (2014 75% of planning materalty, £1,010k}
Our objective in adopting this approach was to ensure
that total undetected and uncorrected audtt differences
in all accounts did not exceed our planmng matenalty
level

Given the importance of the distinction between
revenue and capital for the Group and Company we
have also applied a separate testing materalty of
£248k (2014 £260k) for the revenue column of the
Income Statement, being 5% of the return on ordinary
actwvities before taxation

Wea agreed with the Audit Committee that we would
report all audit differences in excess of £75k (2014
£70k) as well as differences below that threshold that,
In our view, warranted reporting on qualtative grounds

We evaluate any uncormrected misstatements against
both the quantitative measures of matenality discussed
above and in the Iight of other relevant qualitative
considerations
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Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companias Act 2006, and

¢ the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors' Repont for the financial year for which the
financial statements are preparsd 1s consistent with
the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the I1SAs (UK and Ireland), we are required to
report to you if, in our opinion, informatcn in the
annual report 1s

+ matenally Inconsistent with the information in the
audited financtal statements, or

+ apparently matenally incorrect based on, or
matenally inconsistent with, our knowledge of the
company acquired in the course of performing our
audit, or

* 15 otherwise musleading

in particular, we are required to consider whether we
have identified any inconsistencies between our
knowledge acquired durng the audit and the directors
statement that they consider the annual report 15 far,
balanced and understandable and whether the annual
report appropnately discloses those rmatters that we
communicated to the audit committee which we
consider should have been disclosed



We have nothing matenal to add or draw attention to In
relation to

(a) the directors' confirmation in the annual report that
they have camed out a mobust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the entity, Including those that
would threaten its bustiness model, future
performance, solvency or hgudity,

(b) the disclosures in the annual report that descnbe
those nsks and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated,

{c) the directors® statement in the financial statements
about whether they considered it appropnate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
prepanng them, and their identification of any
material uncertainties to the entity’s abilty to
continue to do so over a penod of at least twelve
months from the date of approval of the financial
statements, and

{(d} the directors’ explanation in the annual report as to
how they have assessed the prospects of the entity,
over what penod they have done so and why they
consider that penod to be appropnate, and ther
statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the entity will be able to conttinue In
operation and meet its liabilties as they fall due over
the penod of therr assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualfications or assumptions

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to
report to you If, In our opiInion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept,
or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recaived from branches not visited by us, or

* the financial statements and the part of the
Directars’ Remuneration Report to be audited are
not in agreemant with the accounting records and
returns, or

» certain disclosures of directors' remuneration
specified by law are not made, or

* we have not receved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

» the directors’ statement, set out on page 23, In
relation to going concern and longer-term viability,
and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement
relating tc the company’s compltance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review

Sarah Willams (Semor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLF,
Statutory Auditor

London

4 Decembaer 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year endad 30 September 2015

2015 2014
Revenue Capital Revenue Caprtal
return return Total return etumn Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investments
Gains on investments at far value
through profit or loss 13 15,854 15,854 13,933 13,833
Net investment result 15,854 15,854 13,933 13,833
Income
Income from invastments 3 6,534 2 6,536 6,549 6,549
Other ncome 3 38 38 47 47
Total income 6,672 2 6,574 6,596 6,596
Expenses
Management fees 4 {(123) (369) (492) {(93) (280) (373)
Administrative expenses 5 {780) (844) (1,624) (653) (528) (1,181)
Return before finance cost
and taxation 5669 14,643 20,312 5850 13126 18,975
Finance costs 8 (703) {2,108) (2,811) (702} (2,107y (2,809)
Net return before taxation 4966 12,535 17,501 5,148 11018 16,166
Taxation 9 (32) (32 (45) {45)
Net return after taxation for the
year from continuing operations 4,934 12,535 17,469 5103 11,018 16,121
Discontinued operations
Net return after taxation for the year
from discontinued operations 15 (232} (2,584) (2.816)
Tota! comprehensive income for
the year 4,834 12,635 17,469 4,871 8,434 13,305
Return per ordinary share pence pence pence pence pence pence
Basic and diluted for continuing
operations 11 94 240 334 98 212 310
Bastc and diluted for discontinued
operattons 11 {0 4) B0 (5 4}
Basic and diuted total 11 94 240 334 94 162 256

Tha total calurmn of this staternent is the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income of the Group prepared In accordance with IFRSs as
adoptad by the European Union The supplementary revenue return and capital raturn columns are prapared under guidance published by the AIC

All revenue and capital tems in the above statement darive from continuing operations No operations were acquired or discontinued in the ysar

The notes on pages 52 to B8 form part of thase accounts
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Company Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 Saptember 2015

Investments

Gains on investments at far value
through profit or loss

Net investment result
Income

Income from investments
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Management fees
Administrative expenses

Return before finance costs and
taxation

Finance costs

Net return before taxation

Taxation

Net return after taxation for the year

Return per ordinary share
Basic and diluted

Notes

13

H

2015 2014

Revenuse Capntal Revenue Capital
return return Total retumn return Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
15,853 15,853 6,008 6,008
15,853 15,853 6,008 6,008
6,534 2 6,536 6,549 6,549
38 38 56 56
6,572 2 6,574 6,605 8,605
(123) (369) (492) {207) (404) {611}
(779) (844) (1,.623) (691) {641) {1.332)
5,670 14,642 20,312 5,707 4,963 10,670
(703) (2,108) (2,811) (702) (2,107) (2,809}

4,967 12,534 17,501 5,005 2,856 7,861

(32) (32) {45) {45)
4,935 12,534 17,469 4,960 2,856 7.816
pence pence pence pence pence penca
94 240 334 956 55 150

The total column of this statement is the Statemnent of Comprehensive income of the Company prepared under IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union The supplementary revenue return and capital return columns are prepared under guidance published by the AIC

All ravenue and capital items in the above statement denve from continuing cperations No operations wers acquired or discontinued in the year

The notas on pages 52 10 BB form part of these accounts
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year endlad 30 September 2015

Notes
Year ended 30 September 2015
As at 1 October 2014
Net return for the year from continuing
operations
Share options expense 26

Sale of own shares by Employee Benefit
Trust (EBT) 21

Share options exercised
Transfer between reserves
New shares 1ssued

Share 1ssue expenses

Dmidends declared and paid in year 10

As at 30 September 2015

Year ended 30 September 2014
As at 1 October 2013

Net return for the year from continuing

operations
Net return for the year from discontinued

operattons 15
Share options expense 26
Sale of own shares by Employee Benefit

Trust (EBT) 21
Dividends declared and paid in year 10
As at 30 September 2014

The notes on pages 52 to 88 form part of these accounts
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Capital Share
Share Share redemption options
capital pramium reserve reserve
£000 £000 £000 £000
5253 785 56 (104)
3
(246)
347

60 1,497

@

5,313 2,280 56

5,253 785 56 (123}
19
5,253 785 56 {104)




Capital Revenue Own shares
reserve reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
110,810 18,200 {1,039) 134,061
12,535 4,934 17,469
(8) (5)
(147} 793 646
246
(347}
1,657
@
(3.919) (3.919)
122,943 19,215 149,807
102,654 18,169 (1,628) 125,166
11,018 5,103 16,121
(2,584) (232) (2,816)
19
(178} 589 411
(4,840) {4,840}
110,910 18,200 (1.039) 134,061
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year endad 30 September 2015

Capital Share
Share Share redemption options
capital premium reserve reserve
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Year ended 30 September 2015
As at 1 October 2014 5,253 785 56 (104)
Net return for the year
Share optrons expense 26 3
Sale of own shares by Employee Benefit
Trust (EBT) 21
Share options exercised (246)
Transfer between reserves 347
New shares i1ssued 60 1,497
Share 1ssue expenses (@)
Dmdends declared and paid in year 10
As at 30 September 2015 5,313 2,280 56
Year ended 30 September 2014
As at 1 October 2013 5,253 785 56 (123)
Net return for the year
Share options expense 26 19
Sale of own shares by Employee Benefit
Trust (EBT) 21
Dividends declared and paid in year 10
As at 30 September 2014 5,253 785 56 (104)

Tha notes on pages 52 to 88 form part of these accounts
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Capitat Revenue Own shares
resarve reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
107,212 21,898 (1,039) 134,061
12,534 4,935 17,469
& 6)
(147) 793 646
246
(347)
1,657
@
(3,919) (3,919)
119,244 22,914 149,807
104,534 21,778 (1,628) 130,655
2,856 4,860 7.816
19
(178) 589 411
{4.840) {4,840)
107,212 21,898 (1,039) 134,061
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 30 September 2015

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current habilities
Trade and other payables

Total assets less current habiities

Non-current habiities
Debentures

Total liabilities
Net assets

Represented by

Ordinary share capital
Share prernium

Capital redemption reserve
Share options reserve
Capttal reserve

Revenue reserve

Own shares reserve

Equity Shareholders’ Funds

Net asset value per share
Basic and fully diluted

Notes

12
13

16
17

18

18

19
20

26

21

22

2015 2014
£000 £000

64 80
181,644 165,342
181,708 165,422
799 338
2,537 3,512
3,336 3,850
185,044 169,272
(1,336) (1.338)
183,708 167,934
(33,901) (33,873)
(35.237) (35,211)
149,807 134,061
5313 5,253
2,280 785
56 56
(104)

122,943 110,910
18,215 18,200
(1,039)

149,807 134,061
pence pance
2819 256 7

Approved by the Board of Majedie Investments PLC {Company no  109305) and authorised for issus on 4 December 2015

Prdren  Prcock
Andrew J Adcock
Chairman

The notes on pages 52 to B8 form part of these accounts
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Company Balance Sheet

as at 30 September 2015

Nan-current assets

Property and equipment

Investments held at fair value through profit or loss
Investments in subsidianes

Current assets
Trade and other recevables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Tota! assats less current liabilities

Non-current habilities
Dabentures

Total liabilities
Net assets

Represented by

Ordinary share capital
Share premium

Capital redemption reserve
Share options reserve
Capital reserve

Revenue reserve

Own shares reserve

Equity Shareholders’ Funds

Notes

12
13
13

16
17

18

18

19
20

26

21

2015 2014
F000 £000

64 80
181,644 165,342
162 172
181,870 166,594
894 432
2,280 3,246
3174 3,678
185,044 169,272
(1,336) (1,338)
183,708 167,934
(33,901) (33.873)
(35,237) (35,211)
149,807 134,061
5,313 5,253
2,280 785
56 56
{104)

119,244 107,212
22,914 21,898
{1.039)

149,807 134,061

Approved by the Board of Majedtis Investments PLC (Company no 109305) and authorised for issue on 4 December 2015

Prdres  Pdco ck
Andrew J Adcock
Chamman

The notes on pages 52 to 88 form part of these accounts
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 30 September 2015

Notes

Net cash flow from operating activities
Consolidated net return before taxation from continuing operations®
Consoldated net return before taxation from discontinued operations
Adjustments for
Gains on nvestments refating to continuing operations 13
Losses on investments relating to discontinued operations 15
Consoldation adjustment for Javetn Capital fee income 13
Accumulation drvidends
Share based remuneration
Depreciation
Purchases of investments
Sales of Investments
Finance costs
Operating cashflows before movements in working capital
Decrease In trade and other payables
Increase in trade and other recevables
Net cash outflow from operating activities before tax
Tax recovered
Tax on unfranked incorme
Net cash inflow from operating activittes
Attributable to
Net cash inflow from operating actwities from continuing operations
Net cash outflow from operating actrvities from discontinued

operations
Investing activities
Purchase of tangible assets
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Financing activities
Interest pad
Dmdends paid
Net proceeds from share 1ssues
Proceeds from sale of own shares by EBT
Net cash outflow from financing activities
Decrease In cash and cash equivalents for year 23

Cash and cash egquivalents at start of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2015 2014
£000 £000

1
17,501 16,166
(2,816)
(15,854) (13,933)
g 2,084
118

(183)
3 19
17 25
(44,053) (145,143)
43,806 145,976
1,237 2,496
2,811 2,809
4,048, 5,305
(108} ©)
20, (54)
3,960 5,042
11 26
(67 (67)

3,914 5,201

3.914 7,907
(2,706)

0]

m
(2,783) (2,783)
3.919) (4,840)

1,168
646 411
(4,888) (7,212)
(975) (2,011)
3,512 5,523
2,537 3,512

* Includes dividends receved i the year of £8 583,000 (2014 £6 655 000) and interest receved of Nil (2014 £13,000}

The notes on pages 52 to B8 form part of these accounts

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC



Company Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 30 September 2015

Net cash flow from operating activities
Company net return before taxation”
Adjustments for

Gans on investments

Accumulation dividends

Share based remuneration

Depreciation

Purchases of iInvestments

Sales of Investments

Finance costs
Operating cashflows before movements in working capital

(Decrease)/increase In trade and other payables
Decrease in trade and other receivables

Net cash inflow from operating activities before tax

Tax recovered
Tax on unfranked income

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities
Proceeds from llquidation of subsidianes
Purchase of tangible assets

Net cash inflow from investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Dmdends paid

Net proceeds from share issues

Proceeds from sale of own shares by EBT

Net cash outflow from financing actvihes

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents for year
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

MNotes

13

23

2015 2014
£000 2000
17,501 7.861
(15.853) (6,008)
{(183)
3 19
17 18
(44,053) (145,143)
43,806 145,983
1,238’ 2,730
2,811 2,809
4,049 5,539
{108) 203
19 559
3,960 6,301
11 26
(57) {67)
3,914 6,260
9 207
1
8. 207
(2,783) (2,783)
(3,919) (4,840)
1,168
546 411
(4,888) (7,212)
(968) (745)
3,246 3,991
2,280 3,246

* Includes dvdends recerved in the year of £6,583,000 (2014 £6,655 000) and interest received of Nil (2014 £13,000)

The notes on pages 52 to B8 form part of these accounts
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Notes to the Accounts

General information

Majedie Investments PLC 1s 2 company incorporated and domiciled in England under the Companies Act 2006 The
Company 15 registered as a public mited company and 1s an investment comparny as defined by Section 833 of the
Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered office 1s given on page 99 The nature of the Group's operations
and its pnncipal activities are set out in the Business Review section of the Strategic Report on pages 11 to 15

Cntical Accounting Assumptions and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain criical accounting
assumptions It also requires management to exercise its jJudgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies The areas requinng a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are set out below

Assessment as investment entity
Entities that meet the definition of an investment entity within iFRS 10 are required to measure therr subsidianes at far
value through profit or loss rather than consclidate them The criteria which define an investment entity are, as follows

* obtains funds from one or more Investors for the purpose of providing those investors with Investment services,

+ commits to its investors that its business purpose I1s to Invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investrnent iIncome or both, and

* measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of ts investments on a fair value basis

The Board has agreed with the recommendation of the Audit Committee that the Company meets the definition of an
investment entity This conclusion will be reassessed on an annual basis, if any of these cntena or charactenstics change

The Company’s subsidiary Majedie Portfolio Management Limited provides investment management serices and 1s not
tself an investment entity and as such 1s consolidated into the Group accounts

Unquoted Investments

Unquoted investments are valued at management's best estimate of far value in accordance with IFRSs having
regard to International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines as recommended by the Bntish
Venture Capital Association The principles which the Group applies are set out on page 57 The inputs into the
valuation methodologies adopted include historical data such as earnings or cash flow as well as more subjective
data such as earnings forecasts or discount rates As a result of this, the determination of farr value requires
significant management judgement At the year end, unquoted investments (including MAM) represent 35 0% (2014
31 1%) of consolidated shareholders’ funds

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC



1 Significant Accounting Policies

The pnncipal accounting pelicies adopted are set out as follows

The accounts on pages 42 to 51 compnse the audited results of the Company and its subsidiary for the year ended
30 September 2015, and are presanted in pounds sterling rounded to the nearest thousand, as this Is the functional
cummency In which the Group and Company transactions are undertaken

Gaing Concern

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has sufficient resources to continue in operational
existance for the foreseeable future Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis

Presentation of Statement of Comprehensive Income

In order to reflect better the actvities of an nvestment trust company and in accerdance with guidance 1ssued by
the AIC, supplementary information which analyses the Statement of Comprehensive Income between items of a
revenue and capial nature has been presented alongside the Statement of Comprehensive Income Additionally the
net revenue 1s the measure that the directors beleve to be appropnate In assessing the Company's compliance with
certain requirements set out in section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

Basis of Accounting

The accounts of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with [FRSs They compnse
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board and International Financial
Reporting Committee, interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Commuttee that remain in
effect, to the extent they have been adopted by the European Union

Where presentational guidance set out in the SORP regarding the financial statements of investment trust companies
and venture capital trusts 1ssued by the AIC in November 2014 15 not inconsistent with the requirements of IFRSs,
the directors have sought to prepare the financial statements on a basis compliant with the recommendations of the
SORP

Discontinued operations

On 13 January 2014, the Company publicty announced the decision of the Board to close Javelin Capital LLF,
including 1its two wholly owned subsidianes - Javelin Capital Services Limited and Javelin Capital Fund Management
birnited - followng the appaintment of MAM to become the Investment Manager for the Company The Company
also decided to wind down its wholly owned subsidiary, Majedie Unit Trust Accordingly these had been classified as
discontinued operations of the Group As these entiies ceased operations in the pner financial year and have been
wound-up, there are nc discontinued cperations in the year ended 30 September 2015

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount
as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Addittonal disclosures are provided in note 15 All other notes to the financial statements include amounts for continuing
operations, unless otherwise mentioned
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

Basis of Consolidation

The Company s an investment entity as defined by IFRS 10 and, as such, does not consolidate the entiies it
controls which do not prowvide investment related services to the Company Instead, interests in such entities are
classified as far value through profit or loss, and measured at farr value

The Consolidated Accounts mcorporate the accounts of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
which provide nvestment related services made up to 30 September each year An investor controls an Investee
when it 1s exposed, or has nghts, to variable returns from its Involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee

The results of subsidianes acquired or dispesed of are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income from the effective date of acquisition or disposal as approprate When the Group ceases to have control any
retained nterest in the entity 1s re-measured to its far value at the date when control 1s lost, with the change in
carrying amount recogrised in profit or loss The far value i1s the niial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset In addition, any
amounts previously recognised (in other comprehensive income n respect of that entity are accounted for as If the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or labiities This may mean that amounts previcusly recogrised in
other comprehaensve Income are reclassified to profit or loss All Group entities have the same year end date

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bnng the accounting palicies
used Into fine with those used by the Group

All Intra-group transactions, balances, Income and expenses are elminated on consolidaton
Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following relevant Standards and Interpretations have
not been apphed In these financial statements since they were 1n 1ssue but not yet effective and/or adopted

Intermational Accounting Standards and Interpretations {JAS/IFRSAFRICS) Effectve date
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Classification & Measurement 1 January 2018
IFRS 15  Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the above Standards and Interpretations would have a matenal
impact on the financial statements in the pencd of imitral applcation

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the relevant accounting penod n
which the standard i1s effective
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Foreign Currencies

The indmdual financial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the pnmary economic
environment In which the entity operates, 1 e 1ts functional currency For the purpose of the consclidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed i Pounds Stering (Stering) which 15 the
functional currency of the Company, and the presentatonal currency of the Group Transactions in currencies other
than Sterling are recorded at the rate of exchange prevaling on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet
date, monetary tems and non-monetary assets and irabilties that are farr valued and are denominated i foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevaiing on the balance sheet date

Segmental Reporting

A segment 15 a distinguishable component of the Group that 1s engaged in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses (including intra-group revenues and expenses), for which discrete financiat
information 1s avalable and whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief decision maker who
can make decisions on resource allocation and performance assessment An operating segment could engage In
business actvities in order to earn potential future revenues

Income

Dmadend income from tnvestments 1s taken to the revenue account on an ex-dvidend basis UK dividends are
included net of tax credits Overseas dwvidends are included gross of any withholding tax Where the Company has
elected to receive scnp dvdends in the form of additona! shares rather than in cash, the amount of the cash
dmdend foregone s recognised as income Any excess in the value of the shares receved over the amount of the
cash dwdend 1s recognised in the capital column

The fixed return on a debt security IS recognised on & time apportionment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on
the debt secunty Deposit interest and other interest receivable is included on an accruals basis

Special dividends are taken to the revenue or capital account depending on their nature

Expenses

All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis In respect of the analysis between revenue and
capital tems presented within the Statement of Comprehensive Income, all expenses have been presented as
revenue items except as follows

* Expenses which are incidental to the acquisition or disposal of an investment are treated as capital costs and
separately identified and disclosed {see note 13)

s Expenses are splt and presented partly as capital tems where a connection with the mantenance or
enhancement of the value of the investments held can be demonstrated, and accordingly the investrnent
management expenses have been allocated 75% to capttal, in order to reflect the directors’ expected long-termn
view of the nature of the investment returns of the Company

* The investment management performance fee, which 1s based on capital out-performance, 1s charged wholly
to capital
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

Pension Costs
Payments made to the Group's defined contnbution group personal pension plan are charged as an expense as
they fall due on an accruals basis

Finance Costs

75% of finance costs ansing from the debenture stocks are allocated to capital, 25% of the finance costs are
charged on the same basis to the revenue account Premiums payable on early repurchase of debenture stock are
charged 100% to capital In addition, other interest payable is allocated 75% to capial and 25% to the revenue
account Finance costs are detited on an accruals basis using the effective intersst method

Share Based Payments

The Group has tssued equity-settied share-based payments to certan employees Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at far value determined at the date of grant, which i1s expensed on a straight-ine basis over
the vesting perod, based on the Group's estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest Far value Is
measured by use of the Black-Scholes model The expscted life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions and behavioural
considerations

Taxation
The tax charge represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currenily payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income because it excludes tems of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible
In other years and it further excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

In line with the recomimendations of the SORP, the allocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented
against captal retums in the supplementary information 10 the Statement of Comprehensive Income s the marginal basis
Under this basis, f taxable income 1s capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return column
of the Staterment of Comprehensve Income, then no tax relief is transferred to the capital return column

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to ba payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities in the financial statements and the cormresponding tax bases used in the computatton of taxable
profit, and 15 accounted for using the balance sheet haiity method Oeferred tax habilities are recogrused for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 13 probable that taxable
profits will be avalable aganst which deductible temporary differences can be utilised

No provision 1s made for tax on capital gains since the Company operates as an investment trust for tax purposes

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recogrised imparrment 10ss
Leasehold improvements are wntten off In equal annual Instalments over the minimum penod of the lease whereas
depreciation for other tangible assets 1s provided for at 25% to 33% per annum using the straight-ling method

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership to the lessea All other leases are classified as operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

Investments Held at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
The Group classifies ts investments in debt and equity secunties, as financial assets or financial habilties at far value
through profit or loss

When a purchase or sale Is made under a contract, the terms of which require delwery within the timeframe of the
relevant market, the investments concemed are recognised or derecognised on the trade date

All mvestments are classified as far value through profit or loss as defined by 1AS 39

All mvestments are designated upon initial recognition as held at farr value through profit or loss, and are measured
at subsequent reporting dates at farr value, which 13 etther the bid pnce or the last traded pnce for listed secunties,
depending on the convention of the exchange on which the mvestment 1s quoted Investments in unt trusts or open
ended investment companies are valued at the closing pnce, the bid pnce or the single prce as appropriate,
released by the relevant investment manager

Far values for unquotad investments, or investments for which the market 1s inactive, are established by using vanous
valuation techniques 1n accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation (IPEV)
Guidelines These may include recent arm's length market transactions, the current far value of ancther instrument
which has substantially the same earnings muitiples, discounted cash flow analysis and option pncing models
Where there 1s a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to pnice the nstrument and that
techrnigue has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of pnces obtained in actual market transactions, that
technigue 1s utiised

The farr value of an Investment at the beginning of the year 1s used when an investment 1s transferred between
hierarchy levels

Changes in the far value of investments and gains on the sale of nvestments are recognised as they arise in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Investment in Subsidiary
In its separate financial statements the Company recognises 1ts investment in subsidiary at far value

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial iabilties are recognised on the Group’s Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument Financial assets and financial habiittes are (nitiafly measured at
far value

Trade Receivables
Trade recewvables do not camry any interest and are stated at carrying value which equates to therr far value as
reduced by appropnate allowances for estimated irecoverable amounts

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are short term, highly hquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
that are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value

Non cumrent liabilities

The debentures are intially recognised at cost, being the far value of the consideration receved less issue costs
where applicable After mitial recognition, all interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estmated
future payments over the expected Iife of the financial lliabilities to the net camying amount on mittal recognition

AEPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015

57




58

Notes to the Accounts

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

Trade Payables
Trade payables are not interest beanng and are stated at carrying value which equates to therr far value

Reserves
Gans and losses on the sale of nvestments and investment haolding gains and losses are accounted for in the

Statement of Comprehensive Income and subsequently in the capital reserve

Share options reserve represents the expense of share based payments The deemed expense Is transferred to the
share options reserve

Share prermium account represents the excess over nominal value of consideration receved for equity shares, net of
expenses of the share issue

Own Shares
The consideration paid for own shares 15 treated as a deduction from shareholders’ funds, and not recognised as
an asset

Dividends payable to shareholders
Dividends to sharsholders are accounted for in the penod in which they are paid or approved in general mestings
Dividends payable to shareholders are recogrised in the Statement of Changes in Equity

2 Business segments

For management purposes for the year ended 30 September 2015, the Group was orgarused Into one pnncipal
activity, being nvesting activities (see below) In the pnor year the Group was compnsed of two principal actvities —
investing actmties and investment management sarvices

Investing activities
The Company's investment objectiva is to maximise total shareholder return whilst increasing dvidends by more
than the rate of inflation cver the long term

The Company operates as an investment trust company and its portfollo contains investments in companies isted in
a number of countnes Geographical information about the portfolio 1s provided on page 9 and expasure to different
currencies 1s disclosed in note 27 on pages 80 and 81

Investment management services
To complement this investment objective and create income and capital for the Group, Javelin Capital LLP was
launched to market a range of funds to third party investors and provide investment management and adwisory senices

Javelin Capital LLP was discontinued in the pnor year See note 15 on page 73 for further information
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2 Business Segments continued

External Income from
investment
management sarvices

Intra-group Income from
investrment
management senices

Other operating and
investment income

Share based payments
charge

Other administrative costs

Intra-group Investment
managemsnt services
expenses

Other operating expenses

Operating profit/{loss)
Finance costs

Gains on far value
through profit and loss

Profit/{loss) befare tax
Taxation
Profit/(loss) after tax

Attnbutable to
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Total assets
Total labilities

Net assets

Group Group
2015 2014

Invastment Investmant

management management

Investing and advisory Irvesting  and adwvisory
actvities services  Elimnations Total actvities services  Elirenatons Total
£000 €000 £000 000 £000 £000 £000 £000
4 4

356 (358)
6,574 6,574 6,605 {10} 9 6,586
6,574 6,574 6,605 350 (365) 6,590
3 )] (19 {(19)
2113) (2,113) (1.688) (525) 9 (2,202)
(238} (118} 356
{45} (45)
(2,116) (2,116)  {1,943) (688) 365  (2,266)
4,458 4,458 4,662 (338) 4,324
2.811) {2,811) (2,809) (2,809)
15,854 15,854 13,801 {1,9686) 11,835
17,501 17,501 15,654 (2,304) 13,350
(32) (32) (45} (45)
17,469 17,469 15,609 13,305
17,501 17,501 15,805 361 16,166
(151)  (2,304) 361) (2.816)
185,044 185,044 169,272 169,272
(35,237 (35.237) {35,211} (35,211}
149,807 149,807 134,061 134,061

REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015 59



Notes to the Accounts

3 Income
Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Income from nvestments
Franked investment income! 6,086 B,165 6,086 6,165
UK unfranked investment income 30 30
Accumuiation income 183 183
Overseas dividends 267 354 267 354
6,536 6,549 6,536 6,549
Other income
Deposit interest 1 13 1 12
Sundry income 37 34 37 44
38 47 38 56
Total income 6,574 6,596 6,574 6,605
Total ncome comprises
Dmidends 6,536 6,549 6,536 6,549
Interest 1 13 1 12
Other income 37 34 37 44
6,574 6,596 6,574 6,605
Incoma from investments
Listed UK 2,996 2576 2,996 2,576
Listed overseas 267 354 267 354
Unlisted 3,273 3,619 3,273 3,619
6,536 6,549 6,536 6,549

t Includes MAM ordinary dvidend income of £3,273,000 {2014 £3,619 000)

B0  MAEDE INVESTMENTS PLC




4 Management Fees

Investment management

Investment management
Administration

Group Graup
2015 2014
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
return return Total raturn return Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 2000
123 369 492 93 280 373
123 J69 492 93 280 373
Company Company
2015 2014
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
return return Total return return Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
123 369 492 134 404 538
73 73
123 369 492 207 404 611

The Group’s accounts now include an investment managsment fee expense following the appointment of an extemal
nvestment manager (MAM} Investment management fees of €nit {2014 £165,000) wers pad to Javehn Capital LLP
under the terms of the agreement which has now been terminated Under this agreement an administration fee was
also due The Company’s investment management fee was higher than the Group in 2014 due to Javeiin Capital
LLP management fee being consolidated out of the Group

A summary of the terms of the Investment Agreement for the Company with MAM 1s given In the Directors’ Report on
page 21 At 30 Septemmber 2015, an amount of £106,000 was outstanding for payment of investment management
fees when due to MAM (2014 £132,000)

There were no performance fees dunng the year (2014 nil)

§ Administrative Expenses

Staff costs — note 7

Cther staff costs and directors’ fees
Adwvisers' costs

Information costs

Establishment costs

COperating lease rentals - premises
Depreciation on tangible assets
Auditor's remuneration {see below)
Cther expenses

Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 €000 £000
485 225 485 225
172 220 172 220
348 327 348 327

83 54 83 54
164 81 164 61
133 65 133 65

17 18 17 18

40 53 40 53
182 158 181 309

1,624

1,181

1,623

1,332

A charge of £844,000 (2014 £528,000) to capital and an equivalent credit to revenue has been made n the Group
and a charge of £844,000 (2014 £641,000} in the Company has been made to recognise the accounting policy of
75% of direct investment administration expenses to capital
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5 Administrative Expenses continued

Administration expense disclosures are In respect of continuing operations only Further detalls on discontinued

operations are in note 15 on page 73

Total fees charged by the Auditor for the year, all of which were charged to revenue, compnsed

Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Audit services - statutory audit 38 44 38 44
Other audit related services 2 9 2 9
40 53 40 53
Other audit related services relate to a review of the debenture covenant in 2015 and an intenm review and
debenture covenant in 2014
6 Directors’ Emoluments
Group and Group and
Company Company
2015 2014
£000 £000
Fees 143 176
Salary 169 84
Other benefits 7 6
Bonuses/Partnership profit shares 40 50
359 316
The Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 32 to 35 explains the Company’s policy on remuneration for
directors for the year It also provides further details of directors’ remuneration
7 Staff Costs including CEQ
Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Salanes and other payments 376 171 376 171
Social secunty costs 77 21 77 21
Pension contnbutions 29 14 29 14
Share based remuneration - note 25 3 19 3 19
485 225 485 225
Group Group
2015 2014
Number Nurmber
Average number of employees
Management and office staff 3 2
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8 Finance Costs

Interest on 9 5% debenture stock
2020

Interest on 7 25% debenture stock
2025

Amortisation of expenses associated
with debenture 1ssue

Further detaills of the debenture stocks in 1ssue are provided In note 18

9 Taxation

Analysis of tax charge

Tax on gverseas dwvidends

Reconcthation of tax charge

Group and Company Group and Compary
2015 2014
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
return return Total return return Total
2000 2000 £000 £000 £000 £000
31 961 1,282 321 961 1,282
375 1,126 1,501 375 1,126 1,501
7 21 28 6 20 26
703 2,108 2,811 702 2,107 2,809
Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
32 45 32 45

The current taxation rate for the year 1s lower (2014 lower) than the standard rate of corparation tax in the UK of
20 5%. (2014 22%) The differances are explained below

Net return before taxation for the
year from continuing operations

Nst return before taxation for the
year from discontinued operations

Net return before taxation

Taxation at UK Corporation Tax
rate of 20 5% (2014 22%)
Effects of

- UK dmdends which are
not taxable

— foreign dvidends which are
not taxable

- gains on mvestments which are
not taxable

— expenses not deductible for

tax purposes
— excess expenses for current year
— overseas taxation which s

not recoverable

Actual current tax charge

Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 2000 £000 £000
17,501 16,166 17,501 7.861
(2,818)
17,501 13,350 17,501 7,861
3,588 2,937 3,588 1,729
(1,293) (1,365) (1,293) {1.365)
(55) {76 (55) (76)
(3,250) {2.807) (3,250} (1,321)
12 52 18 54
298 1,059 992 979
32 45 32 45
32 45 32 45
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9 Taxation continued

Group

After claming relief against accrued incoms taxable on receipt, the Group has unrelieved excess expenses of
£73,914,000 (2014 £76,940,000) Itis not yet certan that the Group will generate sufficient taxable income in the
future to utilise these expenses and therefore no deferred tax asset has been recognsed

Company

After claiming rehief against accrued iIncome taxable on receipt, the Company has unrelieved excess expenses of
£73,886,000 (2014 £69,688,000) Itis not yet certain that the Company will generate sufficient taxable income in
the future to utiise these expenses and therefore no deferred tax asset has been recognised

The allocation of expenses to capital does not result in any tax effect Due to the Company’s status as an
investment trust, and the ntention to continue mesating the conditions required to obtain approval in the foreseeable
future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains and lossaes ansing on the revaluation or
disposal of investments

10 Dividends

The following table summanses the amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity shareholders in the pencd

Group and Group and
Company Company
2015 2014
£000 £000
2013 Final dmdend of 6 30p pad on 22 January 2014 3.279
2014 Intenm dmdend of 3 00p pad on 27 June 2014 1.561
2014 Final dnadend of 4 50p pad on 21 January 2015 2,350
2015 Interm dmidend of 3 00p paid on 27 June 2015 1,569
3,919 4,840
2015 2014
£000 £000
Proposed final dwdend for the year ended
30 September 2015 of 5 00p (2014 final
dividend of 4 50p) per ordinary share 2,657 2,350
2,657 2,350

The proposed final dvidend has not been included as a liabilty In these accounts in accordance with IAS 10 Events
after the Balance Sheet date
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10 Dividends continued

Set out below s the total dvidend to be paid in respect of the financial year This is the basis on which the

requirements of Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered

Intenm dwidend for the year ended 30 September 2015 of
3 00p (2014 3 00p) per ordinary share

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 September
2015 of 5 00p (2014 4 50p) per ordinary share

2015 2014
£000 £000
1,569 1,561
2,657 2,350

4,226

3.911

Distnbutable reserves of the Company compnse the Capital & Revenue Reserves

Dwidends for the year (and for 2014) have been solely made from the Revenue Reserve

11 Return per Ordinary Share

Basic return per ordinary share from continuing and discontinued operations 1s based on 52,355,999 (2014
52,055,573) ordinary shares, being the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue having adjusted for the shares
held by the EBT referred to in note 21 Basic returns per ordinary share from continuing and discontinued operations
are based on the net return after taxation attributable to equity shareholders There are nil potentially dilutive shares
ansing from the share options referred to In note 26 These do not give nsa to a matenal diution to the return per
ordinary share and therefore no diluted return per ordinary share has been calculated

Bastc and diluted revenue returns from continuing
operations are based on net revenue after taxation of

Basic and diuted revenue returns from discentinued
operations are based on net revenue after taxation of

Basic and diluted capital returns from continuing operations
are based on net capital return of

Basic and diluted capital returns from discontinued
operations are based on net capital return of

Basic and diluted total returns are based on return of

Basic and diluted revenue returns are based on net revenue
after taxation of

Basic and diluted capital returns are based on net capital
return of

Basic and diluted total returns are based on return of

Group Group
25 2014
£000 £000
4,934 5,103
{232)
12,535 11,018
(2,584)
17,469 13,305
Company Company
20185 2014
£000 £000
4,935 4,960
12,534 2,856
17,468 7,816
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12 Property and Eqinpment

Cost

At 1 October 2014
Additions
Disposals

At 30 September 2015
Depreciation
At 1 October 2014

Charge for year
Dispaosals

At 30 September 2015

Net book value
At 30 September 2015

At 30 September 2014

Cost

At 1 October 2014
Additions
Disposals

At 30 September 2015

Depreciation

At 1 QOctober 2014
Charge for year
Disposals

At 30 September 2015

Net book value
At 30 September 2015

At 30 September 2014

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC

Group Group
Leasehold Office
Improvements Equipmant Total
£000 £000 £000
171 580 751
i 1
(412) 412)
171 169 340
91 580 671
17 17
{412) (412)
108 168 276
63 1 64 '
80 80
Company Company
Leasehold Office
Improvements Equipment Total
£000 £000 £000
171 168 339
1 1
171 169 340
N 168 259 ,
17 17
108 168 276
63 1 64
8O 80




13 Investments at Farr Value Through Profit or Loss

Group 2015 Group 2014
Listed Unlisted Total Listed Unlsted Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 2000 2000
Opening cost at beginning of year 124,723 4083 128,806 94,334 4,575 98,909
(Losses)/gains at beginning of year {1,036) 37,572 36,536 10,741 42,289 53,030
Opering far value at begnning of year 123,687 41,655 165,342 105,075 46,864 151,939
Purchases at cost 44,333 44,333, 145,246 145,246
Sales — proceeds (38,114) (5.771) (43,885) (126,419} (19,239) (145,658)
Gains on sales 2,323 4,518 6,841 11,562 18,747 30,309
{Decrease)/increase In investment
holding gains {(3,312) 12,325 9,013 (11,777) 4,717} {16,494)
Transfer on listing of shares 300 (300)
Closing farr value at end of year 129,217 52,427 181,644 123,687 41,655 165,342
Closing cost at end of year 133,565 2,530 136,095 124,723 4,083 128,806
(Losses)/gans at end of year {4,348) 49,897 45,549 (1,036} 37,572 36,536
Closing farr value at end of year 129,217 52,427 181,644 123,687 41,655 165,342
Company
2015
Subsidiary
Listed Unlisted company Totat
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening cost at beginning of year 124,723 4,059 1,010 129,792
{Losses)/gains at begnning of year (1,038) 37,596 {838) 35,722
Opening farr value at beginning of year 123,687 41,855 172 165,514
Purchases at cost 44,333 44,333
Sales — proceeds (38,114) (5,771) {9) (43,894}
Gans/(losses) on sales 2,323 4,520 (1) 6,842
(Decrease)/increase in Investment holding gans (3,312) 12,323 9,011
Transfer on listing of shares 300 (300)
Closing fair value at end of year 129,217 52,427 162 181,806
Closing cost at end of year 133,565 2,508 1,000 137,073
{Losses)/gains at end of year (4,348) 49,919 (838) 44,733
Closing farr value at end of year 129,217 52,427 162 181,806
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13 Investments at Farr Value Through Profit or Loss continued

Opening cost at beginning of year
Gains/{losses) at beginning of year

Opening far value at beginning of year

Purchases at cost

Sales - proceeds

Gains/(losses) on sales*

Decrease in investment helding gains

Closing farr value at end of year

Clostng cost at end of year
(Losses)/gains at end of year

Closing fair value at end of year

Compary
2014
Subsidiary

Listed Unlisted antities Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
94,333 4,534 9,010 107.877
10,742 42,330 817) 52,255
105,075 46,864 8,193 160,132
145,246 145,246
(126,426) (19,239} (207) (145,872}
11,570 18,764 (7.793) 22,541
(11,778) (4,734} {21) {16,533)
123,687 41,6585 172 165,514
124,723 4,059 1,010 129,792
{1,036) 37,596 {838} 35,722
123,687 41,855 172 165,514

* The loss of £7,793,000 represents the wnte off of the investment in Javelin Capital LLP, net of recoverable capital

Unhisted investments mclude an amount of £127,000 in 3 vanous companies {2014 £355,000 in 4 companies} and
£52,300,000 (2014 £41,300,000) for the Company's investment in MAM as detalled on page 72

Dunng the year the Company incurred transaction costs amounting to £186,000 (2014 £386,000} of which

£160,000 {2014 £56,000) related to the purchases of investments and £26,000 (2014 £340,000) related to the
sales of nvestments These amounts are ncluded in gaing on INvestments at far value through profit or loss, as
disclosed in the Consolidated and Company Statement of Gomprshensve Income

The composition of the investment return 1s analysed below

Net gains on sales of equity
Investments

Increase/(decrease) in holding
gains on equity investments

Consolidation adjustment on
Javeln Capital fee income

Net raturn on investments

Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
6,841 30,309 6,842 22,541
9,013 (16,494) 9,011 (16,533}
118
15,854 13,933 15,853 6,008
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13 Investments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss continued

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
The Group 1s required to classify far value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measuraments The far value hierarchy consists of the following three levels

* Lavel 1 - Quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities

An active market 1s 8 market in which transactions for the asset or liabiity occur with sufficient frequency and volume
on an ongeing basis such that quoted pnces reflect pnces at which an ordery transaction would take place between
market participants at the measurement date Quoted pnces provided by external pricing services, brokers and vendors
are included in Lavet 1, if they reflect actual and regularty occurmng market transactions on an arm's length basis

s Lavel 2 - Inputs other than quoted pnces included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or labilty, either
directly (that 18, as pnces) or indirectly (that 1s, derved from prices}

Level 2 inputs include the following
e quoted pnces for simiar (| @ not identical) assets In active markets

* nputs other than quoted pnces that are observabla for the asset (for example, interest rates and yeld curves
observable at commonly quoted Intervals)

» nputs that are denved pnncipally from, or commoborated by, observable market data by correlation or other
means {market-corroborated inputs}

¢ Lavel 3 — inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The level In the fair value higrarchy within which an asset or liability 15 categonsed 1s determined on the basis of the
lowest lavel iInput that ts signficant to the farr value measurement of the asset For this purpose, the signficance of
an input 1s assessed aganst the far value measurement of an asset or liabifity in its entirety If a far value
measurement uses observable nputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that
measurament s a Level 3 measurement Assessing the significance of a particular input to the far value
measurament requires judgement, considenng factors specific to the asset or hability

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Group The Group
considers observable data to be investments actively traded in organised financial markets, far value s generally
determined by reference to Stock Exchange quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet
date, without adjustment for transaction costs necessary to realisa the asset
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13 Investments at Farr Value Through Profit or LOSS continued

The table below sets out far value measurements of financial assets in accordance with the IFRS farr value

hierarchy system

Financial assets held at farr
value through profit or loss

Equities and managed funds
Listed equity secuniies
Unbsted equity secunties

Financial assets held at fair
value through profit or loss
Equities and managed funds
Uisted equity secunties
Unlisted eguity secunties

Group Group

2015 2014
Level 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
129,217 129,217 123,687 123,687
52,427 52,427 41,655 41,655
129,217 52,427 181,644 123,687 41,655 165,342

Company Company

2015 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £600 £000 £000
129,217 129,217 123,687 123,687
52,589 52,589 41,827 41,827
128,217 52,589 181,806 123,687 41,827 165,514

Investments whose values are based on guoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within
Level 1, include active isted equities The Group does not adjust the quoted price for these instruments

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but am valued based on quoted
market pnces, dealer quotations or alternative pncing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within
Level 2 As Level 2 nvestments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer
restnctions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect tiquidity and/cr non-transferability, which are generally based on
avallable market information During the year there were transfers of £nil (2014 £nil) from Leve! 2 to Leve! 1 for

bisted exchange traded funds

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs As observable pnces are not avadlable for
these secunties, the Group has used valuation techniques to denve the far value In respect of unquoted instruments,
or where the markst for a financial Instrument 18 not active, fair value 1S established by using recognised valuation
methodologies, in accordance with IPEV Valuation Guidelines New investments are initially carned at cost, for a
imited period, being the price of the most recent investment in the investee This 1s 1N accordance with IPEV
Guidelines as the cost of recent investments will generally provide a good mdication of far value Farr value 1s the
price that would be recewved to sell an asset or pad to transfer a liabilty in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date
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13 Investments at Far Value Through Profit or Loss continued

The following table pressnts the movement in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 30 September 2015

Opening balance

Transfers to Level 1

Sales - proceeds

Total gans for the year included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Opening balance
Transfers to Level 1
Sales ~ proceeds

Total gans for the year included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Investments in Investment Funds

Group Gmoup
2015 2014
Equity Equity
Total investments Total investments
£000 £000 £000 £000
41,655 41,655 46,864 46,864
{300) (300)

(5.771) (5,771) {19,239) (19,239)
16,843 16,843 14,030 14,030
52,427 52,427 41,655 41,655

Company Compary
2015 2014
Equity Equity
Total Investments Total Investments
£000 £000 £000 £000
41,827 41,827 55,057 55,057
(300) (300}

{5,780} (5,780) (18,446) (19,446)
16,842 16,842 6,216 6,218
52,589 52,589 41,827 41,827

The Company has a number of investments in investment funds managed by MAM Detalls of these investments are

MAM Tortose Fund

MAM Income Fund

MAM Global Equity Fund

MAM Global Focus Fund

MAM US Equity Fund

MAM UK Smaller Companies Fund**

** The MAM UK Smaler Companies Fund forms part of the MAM UK Equity Sagregated Fund

2015 2014
Investment Proportion Investment Proportion
Vatue Held Value Held
£000 % £000 %
27,547 28 27,579 29
20,470 20 17,481 31
14,564 452 5,089 374
5,397 338 4,997 471
5,970 61 5375 498
5,202 10 5722 11

The fees charged on these investments are as disclosed in the matenal contracts section of the Directors Report on

page 21

In addition the total value of all investments managed by MAM at 30 September 2015 was £130 2 milion (2014
£126 0 million) Further detals on the investrments in the MAM investment funds are contained in the Chief

Executve's Report on pages 6 to 8
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13 Investments at Far Value Through Profit or Loss continued

Substantial Share Interests

MAM Global Equity Fund and MAM Global Focus Fund

The Company has invested £15m and £5m the MAM Global Equity Fund and MAM Gilobal Focus Fund which are a
substantial interest in these funds as at 30 September 2015 These holdings are not subsidianes or associates, and
are accounted for as an investment held at far value through profit and loss Further detalls of investments held in
the MAM funds are detalled in the Investments held in the Investment Funds section on pagse 71

Majedie Asset Management (MAM)
MAM 15 a UK based asset management firm prowding investment management and advisory services across a
range of UK angd global equity strategies

The camying value of the mvestment in MAM s included i the Consolidated Batance Sheet as part of mvestments
at far value through profit or loss

2015 2014
£000 £000
Deemed cost of investment 540 627
Holding gains 51,760 40,673
Far value at 30 September 52,300 41,300

The carrying value 18 usually assessed twice a year by the directors and 1s approved by the Audit Committee The
far value calculation s formulaic, with the signficant input in assessing the price being the earnings of MAM A 5%
increase/decrease in MAM's earnings would result in an increase/decrease of 4 3% in the carrying value of MAM

In accordance with the revised shareholders’ agreement, the Company may sell a certain number of shares to the
MAM Employee Benefit Trust and at the relevant prescrbed price {as calculated n accordance with the revised
shareholders’ agreement)

Dunng the year the Company sold 9,305 (2014 43,747) for a total consideration of £5,746,000 (2014 £19.1 77,000}
resulting In a reahsed gain of £5,659,000 (2014 £18,766,000)

After these and other party transactions the Company holds 57,523 (2014 66,828} ordinary O 1p shares which
represents a 16 7% (2014 18 0%) shareholding in MAM

14 Investment in Substdiary
Subsidiary undertakings at 30 September 2015

Company
Country of Profit after
Registration Number and Capital & tax for the
Incorporation  class of shares Group Reserves at year ended
Company and business and Operation held by Group Holding 300915 300815
thousand thousand
Majedie Portfolio Management Limited UK 1,600,000 100% £162
— Majedie share plan manager, Ordinary
authonsed and regulated by shares
the FCA
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15 Discontinued operations

On 13 January 2014, the Board announced that it would close Javelin Capital LLP, including its two wholly owned
subsidianes - Javelin Capital Services Limited and Javelin Capital Fund Management Limited - following the
appontment of MAM to become the Investment Manager for the Company The Company also decided to wind
down its wholly owned subsidiary, Majedie Unit Trust  All of these entiies have now been liquidated or closed down
As such there are no discontinued operations for the year ended 30 September 2015

Accordingly these were classified as a disposal group, and dunng the year ended 30 September 2014, a net loss
after tax of £2,816,000 was recorded in respect of these subsidianes as disclosed within the Consolidated

Statement of Comprehansive income

2015 2014
Ravenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Discontinued operations
Income
Other income 4
Total Income 4 4
Expenses
Administration expenses (236) {500} (736)
Whte off on disposal (2,084) (2,084)
Net return before taxation for the year
from discontinued operations (232) (2,.584) (2,816}
Taxation
Net return after taxation for the year
from discontinued operations (232) (2,584) (2,816}
16 Trade and Other Receivables
Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Sales for future settlement 124 45 124 45
Prepayments 131 127 131 127
Dwmdends recevable 104 127 104 127
Amounts due from share 1ssugs 387 387
Taxation recoverable 53 39 53 39
Amounts due from subsidiary
undertakings 95 94
799 338 894 432

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other recewvables approximates to therr fair value
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17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Deposits at banks 1,674 2,684 1,674 2,684
Cash attnbutable to discontinued
operations 9
Other cash balances 863 819 606 562
2,537 3,512 2,280 3,246
18 Trade and Other Payables
Amounts falling due within one year
Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Purchases for future settlement 325 228 325 228
Accrued expenses 211 314 21 314
Other creditors 800 796 it 796
1,336 1,338 1,336 1,338
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximates to therr far value
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
£135m (2014 £135m) 9 5%
debenture stock 2020 13,433 13,421 13,433 13,421
£207m (2014 £207m) 7 25%
debenture stock 2025 20,468 20,452 20,468 20,452
33,901 33,873 33,901 33,873

Both debenture stocks are secured by a floating charge over the Company’s assets Expenses associated with the
issue of debenture stocks were deducted from the gross proceeds and are baing amortised over the life of the
debentures Further detalls on interest and the amertisation of 1ssue expenses are provided in note 8
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19 Ordinary Share Capital

Company Company

2015 2014

Number £000 Number £000

As at 1 October 52,528,000 5253 52,528,000 5,253
Ordinary 10p shares issued 605,000 60

As at 30 September 53,133,000 5313 52,528,000 5,253

All shares are allotted fully pard up, and are of one class only Ordinary 10p New ordinary shares can only be 1ssued
at a premium to the mlevant NAV (with debt at far value}

Thare are nil (2014 308,387) ordinary shares of 10p each held by the Employee Benefit Trust {EBT) See note 21 below

Ordinary shares carry one vote each on a poll The Companies Act 2006 abolished the requirement for the
Company to have authonsed share capital The Company adopted new Articles of Association on 20 January 2010
which, inter alia, reflected the new legisiation Accordingly the Company has no authcnsed share capital The
directors will still be imited as the number of shares they can allct at any one time as the Companies Act 2006
requires that directors seek authonty from the shareholders for the allotment of new shares

20 Share Premium

Group and Group and

Company Company

2015 2014

£000 £000

As at 1 October 785 785
Ordinary 10p shares issued 1,497
lssue costs 2

As at 30 September 2,280 785

21 Own Shares

The total number of options outstanding at the date of this report 1s nil {2014 214,628) under the Long Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP) and the total shareholding of the EBT 1s nil (2014 308,387) ordinary shares The shares were
held by the EBT until the relevant options were exercised, until they lapse or until they are sold back to the market
They were presented on the Balance Sheet as a deduction from shareholders’ funds, in accordance with the policy
detalled in note 1

The EBT sold 235,476 ordinary shares back to the market as shown below The own shares reserve has been reduced
to reflect the cost of the shares sold and the resultant loss of £147,000 has been taken to capital reserve

Number of Pnca shares Loss on sala
Date of sale shares sold at £000
2 June 2015 50,000 280 pence 29
3 June 2015 50,000 279 pence 29
11 June 2015 50,000 276 pence 31
19 June 2015 75,000 272 pence 50
8 July 2015 10,476 266 pence 8

235476 147
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21 Own Shares continued

As at 1 October 2014
Options exercised

Shares sold

As at 30 September 2015

22 Net Asset Value

Group and

Company

Own Shares

Number of Rasarve
shares £000
308,387 {1,039
(72,911) 246
(235.,476) 793

The consolidated net asset value per share has been calculated based on equity shareholders’ funds of
£149,807,000 (2014 £134,061,000) and on 53,133,000 (2014 52,219,613) ordinary shares, being the shares in
1ssue at the year end having deducted the number of shares held by the EBT

23 Analysis of Changes in Net Debt

Group

Cash at bank and with brokers
Debt due after one year

Company

Cash at bank

Debt due after one year

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC

At 30 Non At 30
September Cash Cash September
2014 Flows items 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
3,512 975} 2,537
{33,873) {28) (33,901)
(30,361} (975) (28) (31,364)
At 30 Non At 30
Saptember Cash Cash September
2014 Flows {tems 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
3,246 (966} 2,280
(33,873) (28) (33,901}
(30,627) (9686) (28) (31,621)




24 Operating Lease Commitments

The Group has served notice to the landlord on its existing prermises and has arranged mare suitable
accommodation The new arrangements are for five years and involve a sub-lease of an existing leasehold interest,
and which include the nght to participate In sharing of rent free penods and rent reviews as they occur Currently the
head lessee 15 in the process of a rent review and as such it 1s not possible to determing actual future lease
commitments However for the purposes of this note, an estimated future rent commitment has been used
Therefore, the Group has an annual commitment as at 30 September 2015 under sub-lease of £69,000 (2014
£163,000 under the pnor lease) This operating lease commitment i1s disclosed in the table below

Group Group

Expiry Date 2015 2014

£000 £000

Within one year 86 163

Between one and two years 69 38
Between two and three years 69
Between three and four years 69
Between four and five years 69

362 201

25 Financial Commitments

At 30 September 2015 the Group had no financial commitments which had not been accrued for (2014 none}

26 Share-based Payments

The Group did operate one share-based (equity settled) payment scheme being the 2006 LTIP which in turn has two
sections relating to Total Shareholder Return (TSR) based Awards and Matching Awards Dunng the year the last
histoncal awards under the 2006 LTIP vested and the remamning shares in the Company’s EBT sold and the EBT
closed The 2006 LTIP was closed previously with the last awards beng granted in 2009

Long Term Incentive Plan TSR-based Awards

Awards of restncted shares up to a maximum value of one year's salary have performance conditions based on total
shareholder return in relation to two separate performance conditions over a period of five years The performance
conditions contain higher and lower thresholds that determine the extent of the vesting of the award In accordance
with the LTIP rules existing awards increase by any dvidends declared by the Company until they are exercised

Long Term Incentive Plan Matching Awards

Executive directors and senior executives receve a certain percentage of ther overall bonus for the year in deferred
shares The shares granted according to these matching awards only vest once the executive has completed three
years' further service There are no other performance conditions in accordance with the LTIP rules existing awards
increase by any dwvidends declared by the Company until they are exercised
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26 Share-based Payments continuad

Qutstanding at 1 Cctober 2014
Dunng the year
Awarded
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Increase In awards due to dvidends pard

Outstanding at 30 September 2015
Exercisable at 30 September 2015

Cutstanding at 1 October 2013
Dunng the year

Awarded

Forfeited

Exercised

Expired

Increase in awards due to dwidends pad
Cutstanding at 30 September 2014

Exercisable at 30 September 2014

Group
2015
TSR-based Matching
Awards Awards
Weighted Weighted
No Average No Average
of Exercise of Exercisa
Options Pnice (p) Options Prce (p)
211,991 00 12,423 00
{60,113) 00 (12,798) 00
(158,279) g0
6,401 oo 375 oo
00 00
[134] 0o
Group
2014
TSR based Matching
Awards Awards
Weighted Weaighted
No Average No Averags
of Exsrcisa of Exercisa
Options Price (p} Options Pnce (p)
202,759 00 11,869 00
9,232 00 554 co
211,991 00 12,423 00
125,664 00 12,423 00

There were no awards outstanding at 30 September 2015 The awards outstanding at 30 September 2014 had a
weaighted average remaming contractual life of O 08 years and nil years in respect of the TSR-based Awards and

Matching Awards respectively

Awards and options are usually forfested if the employee leaves employment before vesting On 8 July 2015, 72,911
options were exercised by an employee The weighted average share price on that date was £2 655 per share All

other options expired and the scheme has terminated

For the year ended 30 September 2015, tha Company recognised a total share options expense of £3,000 (2014

£19,000) relating to share-based payment transactions
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27 Financia! Instrurments and Risk Profile

As an investment trust, the Company invests in secunties for the long term in order to achieve its Investment
objective as stated on page 1 Accordingly, it 1s the Board's policy that no trading in investments or other financial
instrumants be undertaken The nsk management processes of the Company are aligned with those of the Group
as a whole and 1t 1S at the Group level that the majonty of the nsk management procedures are performed Where
relevant and matenally different to the Group position, Company specific nsk exposures are explaned alongside
those of the Group The followang nisk and sensitvity analysts included in this note are based on the ongoing
operations of the Group and Company

Management of market nsk
Management of market nsk 1s fundamental to the Group’s investment objective and the investment portfolio 1s
continually moritored to ensure an appropnate balance of nsk and reward

Exposure to any one entity 1s monitored by the Board and the Investrment Manager The Board have complied with
the investment policy requirement not to invest more than 15% of the total value of its gross assets, save that the
Company can invest up to 25% of its gross assets in any single fund managed by MAM where the Board believes
that the investment policy of such funds 1s consistent with the Company's objective of spreading investment nsk

From time to time, the Group may seek to reduce or increase its exposure to stock markets and currencies by
taking positions in currency forward contracts, index futures and options relating to one or more stock markets
There are no such positions as at 30 September 2015 These instruments are used for the purpose of hedging
some or all of the existing exposure within the Group's investment portfolio to those currencies or particular markets
or to enable increased exposure when deemed appropnate and with the specific approval of the Board

The Company's financial Instruments compnsa its investment portfolio — see note 13 - cash balances, debtors and
creditors that anse directly from its operations such as sales and purchases awaiting setttement and accrued
income, and the debenture loans used to finance s operations The Company, {as distinct from the Group}, 1s
unlkely to use denvatves for hedging purposes and then only in exceptional circumstances with the specific prior
approval of the Board No hedging was used dunng the year

In pursuing its investment objective the Company 1s exposed to vanous nsks which could cause short term vanation
in its net assets and which could resuft In both ¢r either a reduction in its net assets or a reduction in the profits
available for distribution by way of dividend The main nsk exposures for the Company from its financial instruments
are market nsk (including currency nsk, interest rate nsk and other prce ngk), iquidity nsk and credit nsk

The Board sets the overall investment strategy and has in place vanous controls and imits and receives various
reperts in arder to monitor the Company's and Group's exposure to these nsks The nsk management policies
identfied in this note have not changed matenally from the previous accounting penod in respect of the Company

Market Risk

The pnncipal nsk in the management of the portfolio 18 market nsk 1e the nsk that vatues and future cashflows will

fluctuate dus to changes in market prices This compnses

* foregn currency nsk,

» nterest rate nsk, ancd

» other price nsk 1 @ movementis in the value of investment holdings caused by factors other than interest rate or
currency movements

These nsks are taken mto account when setting investment policy and making investment decisions
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27 Financial Instruments and Risk Profile continued

Foreign Currency Risk

Exposure to foreign currency nsk anses through investments in secunties listed on overseas stock markets A
proporticn of the net assets of the Group and Company are dencminated in currencies other than sterling, with the
effect that the balance sheet and total return can be matenally affected by currency movements The Group and
Company's exposura to foreign currencies through its Investments in overseas secunties as at 30 September 2015
was £9,154,000 and £9,154,000 respectively {2014 £10,180,000 and £10,190,000 respectively)

The Company's investments n the MAM Funds are in stering denominated share classes Within the MAM Funds
the foreign exchange exposure 1S nct hedged

In respect of the Company, the Investment Manager monitors the Company's exposure to foreign currencies and the
Board recelves reports on a regular basis

The Group I1s able, although unlikely, to enter into forward currency contracts as a means of imiting or increasing its
exposure to particular currencies Such contracts can be used for the purpose of hedging the existing currency
exposure of elements of the Group's portfolo (as a means of reducing nsk) or to enable increased exposure when
this 1s deemed appropnate

The currency nsk of the Group and Company's ran-sterling monetary financial assets and labilities at the Balance
Sheet date was

Group Group

2015 2014
Total Total
Overseas currency Overseas currency
Curency exposura investrments exposurs Investments exposure
£000 £000 £000 £000
US Dollar 589 589 1,771 1,771
Euro 8,020 8,020 8,028 8,028
Yen 478 478 275 275
Other non-stering 67 67 116 116
9,154 9,154 10,190 10,190

Company Company

2015 2014
Total Total
Overseas currency Overseas currancy
Currency exposure mnvestments axposure invastments exposure
2000 £000 £000 £000
US Dollar 589 589 1,771 1,771
Euro 8,020 8,020 8,028 8,028
Yen 478 478 275 275
Other non-sterling 67 67 116 116
9,154 9,154 10,190 10,190

Sensitivity analysis

if stering had strengthened by 5% relative to all currencies on the reporting date, with all the other variables held
constant, the iIncome and the net assets attnbutable to equity holders of the parent would have decreased by the
amounts shown below The analysis is performed on the same basts for 2014 The revenue iImpact I1s an estmated
figure for 12 months based on the relevant foreign currency denominated balances at the reporting date
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27 Financial Instruments and Risk Profile continued

Group Group Company Comparwy
Income Statemant 2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue return
Capital return (458) (510} (458) (510)
Net assets (458) B510) {458) {510}

A 5% weakening of sterling against the above currencies would have resulted in an equal and opposite effect on the
above amounts, on the basis that all other vanables remain constant The Company's exposure has been calculated
as at the year end and may not be representative of the year as a whole

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s direct interast rate nsk exposure affects the interest received on cash balances and the far value of
its fixed rate portfolio investments and debentures Indirect exposure to interest rate nsk arses through the effect of
interest rate changes on the valuation of the mvestment portfolic The vast majonty of the financial assets held by the
Company are equity shares, which pay dmdends, not interest The Company may however from time to time hold
small nvestments which pay a fixed rate of interest

The Board sets imits for cash balances and receives regular reports on the cash balances of the Company The
Company's fixed rate debentures introduce an element of geanng to the Company which 1s monitored within imits
and reported to the Board Cash balances are used 1o manage the level of geanng within a range set by the Board
The Board sets an overall investment strategy and alsc has vanous dimits on the investment portfolio which am to
spread the portfolio Investments to reduce the impact of interest rate nsk on company valuatons Regular reports
are recewved by the Board in respect of the Company's investment portfolio and the respective imits

The interest rate nsk profile of the financial assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheet date was

Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Floating rate financial assets
UK sterling 2,537 3,512 2,280 3,246
Financial assets not carrying
interest 182,443 165,680 182,700 165,946
184,980 169,192 184,980 169,192
Fixed rate financiat habilities
UK sterling (33,901) (33,873} (33,901) (33,873)
Financial liabilities not camying
interest (1,336) {1,338) (1,336) {1,338)
(35,237 (35.211) (35,237) (35.211)

Floatng rate financial assets usually compnse cash on deposit with banks which 1s repayable on demand and
recene a rate of interest based on the base rates in force over the penod The fixed rate financial labiities compnse
the Group and Company's debentures totaling £34 2m nominal They pay a weighted average rate of interest of

8 1% per annum and mature in 2020 {£13 5m) and 2025 (£20 7m}
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27 Financial Instruments and Risk Profile continued

Sensitivity analysis
Based on closing cash balances held on deposits with banks, a 0 5% decrease (2014 0 5%) in base interest rates
would have the following effect on net assets and profit before tax of the Group and Company

Group Group Company Company

Income Statement 2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue return (8) (13} (8) (13)
Net assets {8) (13) (8) (13)

A 0 5% increase {2014 0 5%) in interest rates would have resulted in a propertionate equal and opposite effect on
the above amourits on the basis that all other vanables remam constant The above analysis 1s based on closing
balances only and 1s not representative of the year as a whole

Other Price Risk

Exposure to market pnce nsk is signficant and compnses manty movements in the market prices and hence value
of the Company's listed equity investments which are disclosed in note 13 on pages 67 to 72 The Company also
has unlisted investments which are indirectly impacted by movements in listed equity prnces and related vanables
The Board sets an overall investment strategy to achieve a spread of Investments across sectors and regions in
order to reduce nsk The Board recewes reports on the investment portfolio, performance and volatility on a regular
basis in order to ensure that the mvestment portfolio 1s 1n accordance with the mvestment policy

The Investment Manager's policy 1s to manage nsk through a combination of monitonng the exposure to indrnidual
secunties, industry and geographic sectors, whilst mantaining a constant awareness in real time of the portfolio
exposures In accordance with the investment strategy Denvative postions are marked to market and exposure to
counterparties 1s also monitored on a daily basis by the Investment Manager, the Board review it on a quarterly basis

As mentioned earlier, the Investment Manager may use dervative instruments in order to ‘hedge' the market nsk
inherent in the portfolio The Investment Manager reviews the nisk associated with indmidual iInvestments and where
they believe it approprate may use denvatives to mitigate the nsk of adverse market or currency movements The
Investrment Manager discusses the hedging strategy with the Board at its quartery meetings

The following table details the exposure to market pnee nsk on the quoted and unquoted equity investments

Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current Asset Investments at
Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Uisted equity investments 129,217 123,687 129,217 123,687
Unlisted 52,427 41,655 52,427 41,655
Subsidiary Company 162 172
181,644 165,342 181,806 165,514

Sensitivity analysis

if share prices on listed equity Investments had decreased by 10% at the reporting date with alt other vanables
remaning constant, the profit before tax and the net assets attnbutable to the eqguity holders of the Group would
have decreased by the amounts shown below Details of the sensitvty analysis on the investment in MAM 1s
contained n note 13 on page 72
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27 Financial Instruments and Risk Profile continuad

Group Group Company Company

Incoma Statement 2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 E£000 £000

Capital return {12,922} {12,369} (12,922} (12,369)
Net assets (12,922) {12,369) {12,922) (12,368}

A 10% increase (2014 10%) in share pnces would have resulted in a propartionate equal and opposite effect on the
above amounts on the basis that all other vanables remamn constant The analysis has been calculated on the
investments held at the year end and this may not be representative of the year as a whole

Credit Risk
Credit nsk 1s the nsk of other parties faling to discharge an obhgation causing the Group financial loss The Group's
exposure to credit nsk 1s managed by the following

The Company's listed nvestments are held on its behalf by Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Londen Branch,
the Company's custodian which if it became bankrupt or insolvent could cause the Company's nghts with
respect to secunties held to be detayed However under the AIFMD, the Company's Depositary provides certain
indemnrties in respect of the Company's investments The Company receves regular internal control reports from
the Custodian which are reviewed by the Investment Manager and reported to the Audit Committee

Investment transactions are undertaken by tha Investment Manager with a number of approved brokers in the
ordinary course of business on a delvery versus payment basis All new brokers ane reviewed by the Investment
Manager for credit worthiness and added to an approved brokers list If not considered to be a credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s mitigated by diversifying the counterparties through whom the Investment Manager conducts
investment transactions The credit standing of all counterparties 1s reviewed panodically with limits set on
amounts due from any one counterparty

Cash 1s held at banks that are considered to be reputable and tigh quality Cash balances are spread across a
range of banks to reduce concentration nsk

Where the Company makes an investment in a loan or other secunty with credit nsk, that credit nsk 1s assessed
and considered as part of the investment decision making process by the Investment Manager The Board
recenes regular reports on the composttion of the investment portfolio

A credit exposure could anse In respect of denvatives contracts entersd into by the Group if the counterparty
were unable to fulfill ts contractual obligations

Credit Risk Exposure
At the reporting date, the financial assets exposed to credit nsk amounted to the following

Group Group Company Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash on deposit and at banks 2,537 3.512 2,280 3,246

Sales for future settlement 124 45 124 45
interest, dvidends and other

recenvables 675 293 770 387

3,336 3,850 3,174 3,678
Minimum exposure durng the year 2,733 3.850 2,562 3,678
Maximum exposure dunng the year 5,548 20,331 5,377 19,814

All amounts included in the analysis above are based on therr carrying values

None of the financial assets were past due or imparred at the reporting date (2014 none)

REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015

B3



Notes to the Accounts

27 Financial Instruments and Risk Profile continued

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity nsk is the nsk that the Group or Company will encounter difficulties meeting its obligations as they fall due

The Company may penodically invest in denvatives contracts and debt secunties that are traded over the counter
The Company 15 exposed to the dally settlement of margin calls on denvatives

Liquidity nsk 1s monitored although it 15 recognised that the majonty of the Group's assets are investments in quoted
equities and other quoted secunties that are readily realsable The Board has vanous limits In respect of how much
of the Group's resources can be mvested in any one company The unlisted investments in the portfolio are subject
to Itquichity nsk but such investments are subject 10 imits set by the Board and Iiquidity nisk (s taken into account by
the directors when amving at therr valuation The Company does have exposure to concentration nsk due to its
investment In MAM at 28 8% (2014 24 9% in relation to MAM) of the Company’s investment portfolio The
Company closely monitors this investment and receives regular financial reports and believes that the current
concentration nsk 1s in-line with the Company’s objective of diversifying its investment portfolio into the investment
groups as per its investment polcy

The Group maintains an appropnate level of cash balances i order to finance its operations and the Investrment
Manager regularly monitors the Group's cash balances to ensure all known or forecasted labilties can be met The
Board receives regular reports on the level of the Group’s cash balances The Group does not have any overdraft or
other borrowing facilities to prowide iquidity

A matunty analysis of financial liabilites showing the remaining contractual matunties is detalled below

Group and Company

2015
Due within  Due between  Due between Due 3 years
Undtscounted cash flows 1year 1and2years 2and 3 years and beyond Total
£000 E000 £000 EQOO £000
9 5% debenture stock 2020 13,500 13,500
7 25% debenture stock 2025 20,700 20,700
Interest on financial habilites 2,783 2,783 2,783 11,680 20,029
Trade payables and cther liabilities 1,336 1,336
4,119 2,783 2,783 45,880 55,565
Group and Company
2014
Due within  Due between  Due between Due 3 years
Undiscounted cash fiows 1ysar 1and?2years 2and3 years and beyond Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
9 5% debenture stock 2020 13,500 13,500
7 25% debenture stock 2025 20,700 20,700
Interest on financial habilities 2,783 2,783 2,783 14,463 22,812
Trade payables and other liabilities 1,338 1,338
4,121 2,783 2,783 48,663 58,350
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27 Financral Instruments and Risk Profile continued

Categones of financia! assets and habilities

The following table analyses the camying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities by categones as defined in

|IAS 39
Group Group Company Company
Financial assets 2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securtiies 181,644 165,342 181,806 165,514
181,644 165,342 181,806 165,514
Other financial assets' 3,336 3,850 3,174 3,678
184,980 169,192 184,980 169,192
Financiat habilittes
Financial habiities measured at
amortised cost? 35,237 35,211 35,237 35,211
35,237 35,211 35,237 35,211

1 Qther financial assets include cash and cash equivalents due from brokers, cash collateral on securities borrowed, dmdend and interast

recevables other recevablas and prepayments

2 Financial fabiibes measured at amortised cost include debenture stock tssuad, due to brokers, tees and other payables and accruod expenses

The investment portfolio has been valued in accordance with the accounting policy in note 1 to the accounts, 1e at
far value The debenture stocks are classified as level 3 under the farr value hierarchy The fair value of the
debenture stock I1s calculated using Discounted Cash Flow analysis and by reference to the redemption yields of a
simitar compantes’ debt instrument, with an appropnate margin spread added

Book Bock Farr Far
Value Valuo Value Valus
Group and Company 2015 2014 2015 2014
Financial abiities £000 £000 £000 £000
£13 5m (2014 £13 5m) 9 5%
debenture stock 2020 13,433 13.421 16,839 16,916
£20 7m (2014 £207m) 7 25%
debenture stock 2025 20,468 20,452 25,805 24,737
33,901 33,873 42,644 41,653

Capital Management Policies and Procedures
The Company’s capital management objectives are

* to ensure that 1t is able to continue as a gong concemn, and

* to maximise the revenue and capital returns to its equity shareholders through an appropnate mix of equity
capital and debt The Board sets a range for the Company's debt (comprised of debentures less cash) at any
ona ime which 1s maintaned by management of the Company’s cash balances
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27 Financtal Instruments and Risk Profile continued

Capital at 30 September compnses

Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 FO00 £000 £000
Net Debt
Adjusted cash and cash
eguivalents (2,000) (2,512) (1,838) (2,340
Debentures 33,901 33.873 33,901 33,873
Sub total 31,901 31,361 32,063 31,633
Equity
Equity share capital 5313 5,253 5313 5,253
Retamned earnings and other
reserves 144,494 128,808 144,494 128,808
Shareholders’ funds 149,807 134,061 149,807 134,061
Geanng
Net Debt as a percentage of
shareholders’ funds 213% 23 4% 21 4% 23 5%

Maximum potential geanng represents the highest geanng percentage on the assumption that the Group or
Company had no net current assets As at 30 September 2015, n respect of the Group and the Company, this was
22 6% and 22 6% respectively (2014 Group and Company, 25 3% and 25 3% respectively}

The Board montors and reviews the broad structure of the Company's capital on an ongoing basis The review Includes

¢ the level of geanng, taking into account the investment Manager's views on the market,

s the level of the Company's iree float of shares as the Barlow family owns approximately 53% of the share capital
of the Company, and

* the extent to which revenue in excess of that required to be distrbuted should be retained

These objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are unchanged from the pror penod

The Company 1s subject to vanous externally imposed capital requirements

¢ the debentures are not to exceed In aggregate B6%% of adjusted share capital and reserves In accordance with
the respective Trust Deeds,

¢ the Company has to comply with statutory requirements relating to dividend distnbutions, and

¢ the AIFMD imposes a requirement for all AIFs to have in place a kmit on the amount of leverage that they may
hold It 1s then the responsibility of the relevant AIFM to ensure that this imit 15 not exceeded. which in this case
1s the Company {being an internally managed AlF}
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27 Fiancial Instruments and Risk Profile continued

Leverage I1s similar to geanng (as calculated in accordance with AIC guidelines above) but the AIFMD mandates a
certain calculation methodology which must be apphed Leverage as calculated under the AIFMD methodology In
respect of the Company I1s

Group Company

2015 2015

Gross method £000 £000
Investments held at far value through profit or loss 181,644 181,644
Investments in subsidianes held at far value through profit or loss 162
Total investments at exposure value as defined under AIFMD 181,644 181,806
Equity Shareholders Funds 148,807 149,807
Leverage 121 121
Group Company

2015 2015

Commitment methed £000 £000
Investments held at far value through profit or loss 181,644 181,644
investments in subsidianes held at far value through profit or loss 162
Cash and cash equivalents 2,537 2,280
Total investments at exposure value as defined under AIFMD 184,181 184,085
Equity Shareholders Funds 149,807 149,807
Leverage 123 123

The leverage figures above represent leverage as calculated under the gross and commitment methods as defined
under the AIFMD (a figure of 1 represents no leverage or borrowings) The two methods differ in therr treatment of
amounts outstanding under denvative contracts with the same counterparty, which are not applicable to the
Company and their treatment of cash balances In both methods the Company has included debentures by
including the value of investments purchased by those borrowings, rather than ther balance sheet value The
Company’s leverage limit under the AIFMD 1s 1 5 which equates to a bomrowing level of 50% (the Company has not
exceeded this imit as any tme dunng the past year)

These requirements (except for the AIFMD leverage requirement), are unchanged since last year and the Company
has complied with them

28 Related Party Transactions

Majedie Asset Management (MAM)

MAM became Investmant Manager to the Company from 13 January 2014 under the terms of an Investment
Agreement The agreement provides for MAM to manage the Company's investment assets on both a segregated
account basis and alsc by investments into vanous MAM collective investment vehicles or funds Details of the
Investment Agreement are contained in the matenal contracts section of the Directors’ Report on pages 21 and 22
As Investment Manager MAM 1s entitled to receve investment management fees In respect of segregated account
mnvestment these are charged directly to the Company and are shown as an expense In its accounts Any fees due
in respect of investments made into any MAM funds are charged to the fund and are therefore included as part of
the investment value of the relevant holdings Detalls concerning the Company’s investments in the year in the MAM
funds are shown n the Chairman’s & Chief Executive’s Reports on pages 4 to 8
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28 Related Party Transactions continued

(n addrtion, the Company retains an investment n MAM itseff Mr JWM Barlow 1s a non-executive director of MAM,
but receves no remuneration for this role MAM s accounted for as an investment in both the Company and Group
accounts and 1s valued at far value through profit or loss Details conceming the Company's investment in MAM 15
included in the Charman’s & Chief Executwve’s Reports on pages 4 to 8 and on note 13 on page 72

Majedie Portfolio Management {MPM)

The Company pays certain costs on behalf of Maedie Portfolio Management Limited (MPM) for operating the
Majedie Investments PLC Share Plan and additionally 1s charged a management fee by MPM Any such costs pad
by the Company are recharged to MPM, net of any management fees due

Javelin Capital

Javelin Capital LLP (Javelin Capttal) was the Investment Manager and General Administrator to the Company untii 13
January 2014, when MAM was appointed as Investment Manager, and was also the parent entity of Javelin Capital
Fund Management Umited (JCFM} and Javelin Capital Services Limited (JCS} All Javelin Capital entities have
ceased trading and have been iquidated As such there were no transactions in the penod

The table below discloses the transactions and balances between those entities

2015 2014
Transactions dunng the year £000 £000
Divdend income receved from MAM 3,273 3,619
MAM share sale realised gans 5,659 18,766
JCEMAF advisory fee revenue due to Javelin Capital (from the Company) 122
Company management fee revenue due to Javelin Capital 165
Company administration fee revenue due to Javelin Capital 73
Company lease charge to JCS g
JCS management fes income from Javelin Capital 571
MPM costs recharged by the Company 36 35
Management fee income due to MAM (segregated account only} 492 373
Balances outstanding at the end of the year
Between the Company and MAM (investment management fees) 106 132
Value of the Company's iInvestment in MAM 52,300 41,300
Between the Company and MPM 96 95

Transactions betwaen group companies dunng the year were made on terms equivalent to those that occur in arm's
length transactions

Remuneration

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personne! of the Company, are set out below in
aggregate for each of the categones specified n JAS 24 Related Party Disclosures There are no amounts
outstanding at 30 September 2015 for directors fees (2014 nily Further information about the remuneration of
indndual directors 1s provided In the audited section of the Report on Directors” Remuneration on page 33

2015 2014
£000 £000
Short term employee benefit 359 266
Partnership prefit shares 50
359 316
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Notice of Meeting

This Notice of Meeting is an important document, if shareholders are in any doubt as to what action to take, they
should consult an appropnate indspendent advisor

Notice i1s hereby given that the one hundred and fifth Annual General Meeting of Majedie Investments PLC will be
held at Crty of London Club, 19 Old Broad Strest, London EC2N 1DS on Wednesday, 20 January 2016 at 12 noon
for the purpose of transacting the following

To consider and, If thought fit, pass the following Resalutions of which Resclutions 1 to 8 will be proposed as
Ordinary Resolutions and Resolutions S to 11 shall be proposed as Special Resolubons All business to be
transacted at the AGM 1s Ordinary Business for the purpose of the Listing Rules

Ordinary Resolutions

1 To receve the Diractors’ Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 September 2015

2 To approve the Directors' Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 September 2015, which can be found on
pages 32to 35

To declare a final dvidend of 5 Op per share in respect of the year ended 30 September 2015

To re-appoint PD Gadd as a director

To re-appoint JWM Barlow as a director

To appoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors

To authonse the directors to fix the auditor's emmuneration

That for the purposes of section 551 of the Comparies Act 2006 the Directors be generally and unconditionally

authonsed to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares and grant nghts to subscnbe for, or convert
any secunties inte, Ordinary Shares up to a maxmum number of 5,300,000 Ordinary Shares, prowided that

QDN W

a) The authonty granted shall {unless previously revoked or renewed) expire at the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company in 2017, or if earlier, on the expiry of 15 months from the passing of this
Resolution, and

b) The authonty shall allow and enable the Directors to make an offer or agreement before the expiry of that
authonty which would or might require relevant secunties to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors
may allot relevant secunhes in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if that authonty had not expired

Special Resolutions

9 That, subject to the passing of resolution 8 above, the Directors be empowered in accordance with section 570
and 573 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act) to allot equity secunties (within the meaning of section 560 if the
Act) of the Company for cash pursuant to the authonty conferred by resolution 8 as if section 561 of the Act did
not apply to any such allotrment, provided that

a) The power granted shall be Iimited to the altotment of equity secunties wholly for cash up to a maximum
number of 5,300,000 Ordinary Shares,

b) The authonty granted shall {unless previously revoked) expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Cempany in 2017 or, if earlier, 15 months after the passing of this resolution,

¢) The said power shall allow the enable the Directors to make an offer or agreement before the expiry of that
power which would or might require egqurty secunties to be allotted afier such expiry and the Directors may
allot equity secunties in pursuance of such offer or agreement as If that power had not expired
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10 THAT the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authonsed in accordance with Section 701
of the Companies Act 2006 {the Act) to make market purchases {within the meaning of Section 633 of the Act)
of Ordinary Shares of 10p each in the capital of the Company {Ordinary Shares), provided that

(@ the maximum number of Qrdinary Shares hereby authonsed to be purchased shall be 7,964,636, or If less,
14 99% of the number of shares in circulatton iImmediately followang the passing of this Resolution,

(b} the mimmum pnce which may be pad for each Ordinary Share s 10p,
(c) the maximum pnce payable by the Company for each Ordinary Share is the higher of

) 105% of the average of the middle market quotations of the Crdinary Shares in the Company for the five
business days pror to the date of the market purchase, and

{(n the higher of the pnce of the last ndependent trade and the highest current independent bid as stipulated
by Article 5(1) of Commussion Regulation (EC) 22 December 2003 implernenting the Market Abuse
Dirsctive as regards exemptions for buyback programmes and stabiisation of financial instruments
(No 2233/2003),

(d} the authonty hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company in 2017 or, if earlier, on the expiry of 18 months from the passing of this Resolution, unless such
authonty 1s renewed pnor to such time, and

(e} the Company may make a contract to purchase Ordinary Shares under the authorty hereby conferred prior
to the expiry of such authorty which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiration of such
authonty and may make a purchase of Ordinary Shares pursuant to any such contract

11 THAT the Company be and 1s hereby generally and unconditionally authonsed to hold general meetings (other
than annual general meetings) on 14 clear days’ notice

Registered Office Registered in England Number 109305
Tower 42

25 Old Broad Street

London EC2N 1HQ

By order of the Board

Capita Sinclair Henderson Limited
Company Secretary

4 December 2015

MAJEDIE INVESTMENTS PLC




Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolution 1 - To receive the Directors’ Report and Accounts

The Directors are required to present the financial statements, Directors’ report and Auditor's report to the meeting
These are contained in the Company’s Annual Report and Financial Statements 2015 A resolution to receve the
financial statements, together with the Directors’ reports and the Auditor’s report on those accounts for the financial
penod ended 31 December 2015 is included as an ordinary resolution

Resolution 2 - Directors' Remuneration Report

Reflecting the remuneration reporting regime which carme into effect on 1 Cctober 2013, shareholders have an annual
adwvisory vote on the report on Directors’ remuneration Accordingly, shareholders are being asked to vote on the
receipt and approval of the Directors’ Remuneration Report as set out on pages 32 to 35 of the 2015 Annual
Report

Resolution 3 - Final Dividend

The Board proposes a final dvidend of 5 0 pence per share in respect of the year ended 30 September 2015 If
approved, the recommended final dvidend will be pad on 27 January 2016 to all ordinary shareholders who are on
the register of members on 15 January 2016 The shares will be marked ex-dmdend on 14 January 2016

Resolutions 4 and 5 - Re-election of Directors

The Company's Articles of Asscciation require that at every Annual General Mesting any director who has not retired
from office at the preceding two Annual General Meetings shall stand for re-appointment by the Company

Mr PD Gadd, having been last re-appointed at the Annual General Meeting in 2013, will retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, and, being eligible, will offer hmself for re-appomntment

Mr Barlow, having served far over nine years and being a non-executive director of Majedie Asset Management, the
Investment Manager, must submit himself for annual re-appointment

Full tiographies of all the directors are set out In the Company's 2015 Annual Report and are also available for
wviewing on the Company’s website http //www majedieinvestments com

Resolutions 6 and 7 - Appointment and Remuneration of Auditor

At each meeting at which the Company's financial statements are presented to its members, the Company 1s
regured to appoint an auditor to serve until the next such meeting The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committes, recommends the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP

Resolution 8 - Authority to allot ordinary shares

Resolution 8 authonses the Board to allot ordinary shares generally and unconditicnally in accordance with Section
551 of the Companies Act 2006 up to a maximum number of 5,300,000 Ordinary Shares, representing
approximately 8 99% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital at the date of the Notice

No ordinary shares will be 1ssued at a price less than the prevaling net asset value per Ordinary Share at the time of
1ssue This authorty shall expire at the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2017

Resolution 9 - Authonty to dis-apply pre-emption nghts

Resolution 9 15 a special resolution which 1s being proposed to authonse the Directors to disapply the pre-emption
nghts of existing shareholders in relation to 1ssues of ordinary shares under Resolution 8 (being a maximum number
of 5,300,000 Ordinary Shares, representing approximately 9 99% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital at the date of
the Notice)

This authonty shall expire at the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2017
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Resolution 10 — Purchase of Own Shares

Resolution 10 1s a special resolution that wilf grant the Company authorty to make market purchases of up to
7,964,636 Ordinary Shares, representing 14 99% of the ordinary shares In issue as at the date of the Notice Any
shares bought back will be cancelled

The maximum price which may be paid for each Ordinary Share must not be more than the higher of (i} 105% of the
average of the mid-market values of the Ordinary Shares for the five business days before the purchase 1s made or
(ii} the higher of the pncs of the last independent trade and the highest current Independent bid for the Ordinary
Shares The rminimum pnce which may be paid for each ordinary share 1s £0 10

The Directors would not exercise the authonty granted under this resolution untess they consider 1t to be In the best
Interests of shareholders Purchases would be made in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006
and the Listng Rules This authonty shall expire at the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2017 when a resolution
to renew the authonty will be proposed

Resolution 11 - Notice Period for General Meetings

Resolution 11 (s a special resolution that will give the Directors the ability to convene generat mestings, other than
annual general meetings, on a minimum of 14 ¢lear days’ notice The minimum notice period for annual general
meetings will remain at 21 clear days This authanty would provide the Company with flexibility where action needs
to be taken quickly but will only be used where the Directors consider it In the best interests of shareholders to do
s0 and the matter 15 required to be dealt with expediently The approval will be effective until the Company’s Annual
General Meeting to be held in 2017, at which it 1s intended that renewal will be sought

Recommendation

Full details of the above resctutions are contained in the Notice The Directors consider that all the resolutions to be
proposed at the Annual General Mesting are in the best interests of the Company and its members as a whole The
Directors unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour of all the resolutions, as they intend to do in
respect of ther own beneficial holdings
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Note 1

To be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting {and for the purpose of the determination by the Company of the
number of votes they may cast) members must be entered on the Company's register of members at 6 00 pm on
18 January 2016 (or, In the event of any adjournment, 6 00 pm on the date which 1s two days {excluding weekends
and bank holidays) before the tme of the adjourned meeting} Changes to the register of members after the relevant
dsaditne shall be disregarded in deterrmining the nghts of any person to attend and vote at the mesting

Note 2

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint one or more persens as his/her proxy to attend,
speak and vote on his/her behalf at the meeting A proxy need not be a member of the Company If multiple proxes
are appointed they must not be appointed in respect of the same shares To be effective, a copy of the enclosed
personalised form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authonty under which it is signed or a
certified copy thereof, should be lodged at the office of the Company's Registrar, not later than 48 hours befare
(excluding weekends and bank holidays) the time of the meeting or any adjustment thereof The appointment of a
proxy will not prevent a member from attending the meeting and voting in person if he/she s¢ wishes A member
presant In person or by proxy shall have ong vote on a show of hands On a vote by polt every member present in
person cr by proxy shall have one vote for every ordinary share of which he/she is the holder The termination of the
authonty of a person to act as proxy must bs notified to the Company in writing

To appoint more than one proxy, shareholders will need to complete a separate proxy form in relation to each
appointment (you may photocopy the proxy form}, stating clearly on each proxy form how many shares the proxy 1s
appanted in relation to A fallure 1o specify the number of shares each proxy appointment relates to or specifying an
aggregate number of shares In excess of those held by the member will result n the proxy appaintment being
rwvald Please indicate If the proxy instruction 1s one of multiple mstructions being given All proxy forms must be
signed and should be returned togsther in the same envelcpe

Shareholders may cast a vole elsctronically rathsr than complabing a hard copy proxy form To do so, go 1o
Computershare’s URL www eproxyappointment com where the following details, which can be found on your proxy
card or in an emall receved from Computershare, will be required

* the meeting control number;
* your shareholder reference number, and
*  your unique pin code

For the electronic proxy to be vald it must be received by Computershare no later than 12 00 noon on Monday,
18 January 2016

Note 3

in the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the
appointment submitted by the most semor holder will be accepted Senionty 1s determined by the order in which the
names of the joint holders appear in the register of members in respect of the joint holding (the first-named being
the most senor)

Note 4

Any person to whom this notice is sent who 1s a person nominated under Section 146 of the Companies Act 2006
to enjoy information nghts (a Nominated Person) may, under an agreement betwean him/her and the member by
whom he/she was nominated, have a rnight to be appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for the
Annual General Meeting If a Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment nght or does not wash to exercise
it, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a nght to give instructions to the member as to the exercise of
voting nghts The statements of the nghts of members In relation to the appointment of proxies in Note 2 above
does not apply to a Nominated Person The nghts described in that Note can only be exercised by registered
members of the Company
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Note 5

Pursuant to regulation 41(1) of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001, only those shareholders registered in
the register of members of the Company as at 6 00 pm on 18 January 2016 shalt be entitied to attend and vote at
the atoresaid Annual General Mesting in respect of the number of shares registered In ther name at the that time
Changes to entnes on the relevant register of members after 6 00 pm on 18 January 2016 (the specified time) shall
be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend or vote at the meeting If the meeting 1s adjourned
to a time not more than 48 hours after the specified time applicable to the onginal meeting, that time will also apply
for the purpose of determining the entitlement of members to attend and vote (and for the purpose of determining
the number of votes they may cast) at the adjourned Meeting i, however, the Meaeting 1s adjourned for a longer
period then, to be sa entitied, members must be entered on the Company's register of members at the time which
1s 48 hours before the time fixed for the adjourned Meeting or, if the Company gives notice of the adjourned
Meeting, at the time specified 0 that notice

Note 8

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service
may do so for this meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures descnbed in the CREST
Manual, which Is available to download from the Euroclear website (www euroclear corVCREST) CREST Persconal
Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service
provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponscr or voting service provider(s}, who will be able to take the
appropnate action on ther behalf

In order for a proxy appaintment or Instruction made using the CREST service to be vald, the appropnate CREST
message {a "CREST Proxy Instruction") must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear’s specifications
and must contan the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual The message.
regardless of whether it constitutes the appontment of a proxy or to an amendment to the instruction gven to a
previcusly appointed proxy must, in order to be vaiid, be transmitted so as to be receved by the issuer's agent (iD
3RA50) by the latest trmefs) for receipt of proxy appaintments specified in the notice of meeting For this purpase,
the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the trmestamp applied to the message by the
CREST Applications Host} from which the issuer's agent Is able to retneve the message by enguiry to GREST in the
manner prescnbed by CREST After this time any change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST
should be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that
Eurcclear does not make avallable special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system
timings and imitations will therefore apply In relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It 1s the responsibility
of the CREST member concerned to take (or, If the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or sponsored
member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1S transmitted by means of the
CREST systemn by any particular bme in this connection, GREST members and, where applicable, therr CREST
sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning
practical imitations of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5) {a) of
the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001

Note 7
As at the date of this Notice, the Company's Issued share capital and total voting nghts amounted to 53,133,000
ordinary shares camying one vote each
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Note 8

In accordance with Section 319A of the Companies Act 2005, the Company must cause any question relating to
the business being deatt with at the meeting put by a member attending the meeting to be answered No such
answer need be gven If

a) to do so would
) nterfare unduly with the preparation for the meeting, or
(i} nvolve the disclosure of confidential information,
b) the answer has already been given on a website In the form of an answer to a question, or
c) s undesrrable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered

Note 9

A person authonsed by a corporation 1s entitied to exercise (on behalf of the corporation) the same powers as the
corporation could exercise f it were an indwidual member of the Company On a vote on a resofution on a show of
hands, each authorised persen has the same voting nghts as the corporation would be entitled to Ona vote ona
resolution on a poll, If more than one authonsed person purports to exercise a power in respect of the same shares

a) If they purport to exercise the power in the same way as each other, the power 1s treated as exorcised in that way,
b) if they do not purport to exercise the power in the same way as each other, the power Is treated as not exercised

Note 10

Shareholders should note that it 1s possible that, pursuant to requests made by shareholders of the Company under
section 527 of the Comparnies Act 2008, the Company may be required to publish on a website a statement setting
out any matter relating to (j) the audit of the Company’s accounts (including the Auditors' Repart and the conduct of
the audit) that are to be lad before the Annual General Meeting, or (I} any circumstance connected with an auditor of
the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports were laid In
accordance with sechion 437 of the Companies Act 2006 The Company may not require the shareholders requesting
any such website publication to pay its expenses in complying with sections 527 or 528 of the Companies Act 2006
Where the Company I1s required to place a statement on a website under section 527 of the Companies Act 20086, it
must forward the statement to the Company’s auditor not iater than the time when it makes the statement available
on the website The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Mesting iIncludes any statement that the
Company has been required under secton 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website

Note 11

Members satisfying the thresholds in section 338 of the Comparies Act 2006 may require the Company to gve, to
members of the Company entitted to recews notice of the AGM, notice of a resolution which those members intend to
move (and which may properly be moved) at the AGM A resolution may property be moved at the AGM unless () it
would, if passed, be ineffective (whether by reason of any inconsistency with any enactment or the Company’s
constitution or otherwise), (i t 1s defamatory of any person, or (i} it 1s frvolous or vexatious The business which may be
deait with at the AGM includes a resciution circulated pursuant to this nght A request made pursuant to this nght may
be in hard copy or electronic form, must identify the resclution of which notice 1s to be given, must be authenticated by
the person(s) making it and must be receved by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the date of the AGM

Note 12

Members satisfying the thresholds in section 338A of the Companies Act 2006 may request the Company to include
in the business to be dealt with at the AGM any matter {other than a proposed resolution} which may properly be
inctuded In the business at the AGM A matter may properly be included in the business at the AGM unless () it 1s
defamatory of any person or (i} it 1s fnvolous or vexatious A request made pursuant to this nght may be in hard
copy or electronic form, must identify the matter to be included in the busmness, must be accompanied by a
statement setting out the grounds for the request, must be authenticated by the person{s) making it and must be
recenved by the Company nct later than 6 weeks befcre the date of the AGM
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Note 13
A copy of this notice and any subsequent notices In respect of section 388A and any information required under
section 311A of the Compames Act 2006 will be avalable on the Company’s website www majedieinvestments com

Notg 14

The termis and conditions of appointment of Directors will be available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company durnng usual business hours on any weskday (except Saturdays and public holidays) untl the date of the
Meeting and at the place of the Meeting for a penod of fifteen minutes prior to and during the Meeting None of the
Directors has a contract of service with the Company

Note 15
You may not use any electronic address prowided either in this Notice of Meeting or any related documents
{including the form of proxy) to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than these expressly stated

Note 76

If a shareholder receving this notice has sold or transferred all shares in the Trust, this notice and any other relevant
documents {e g form of proxy) should be passed to the persen through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for
transmission to the purchaser
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Majedie Savings Plans

Majedie General ISA (formerly a PEP)

You are no longer able to put new money into a PEP However, your existing PEP investments remain sheftered from
tax and can continue to grow You rmay transfer an existing PEP or ISA from another manager to the Majedie
General ISA and, If you have not already subscnbed to another Stocks & Shares ISA in this tax year, you can apply
to pay in to your Majedie General ISA

Flease note that ISA imits apply and taxation lavels and bases are subyect to change Past performance of
investments 1s not a guide to future performance as ther value can go down as well as up

Further detalls may be obtained from the Company's ISA Manager, The Share Centre, PO Box 2000, Aylesbury,
Buckinghamshire HP21 8ZB (telephone 0800 800 008)
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Majedie Savings Plans

Majedie Share Plan

The Majedie Share Plan 15 a straightforward and low cost way to invest or save in the shares of Majedie Investments
PLG Charges are kept low and the Plan s very flexible

Lump surn nvestments are dealt with on a weekly or daly basis whereas the monthly savings facility 1s an affordable
and effective way of bulding a substantial shareholding over the longer term The minimum lump sum investment 1S
£250, while the minimum monthly amount 18 £25 There are no maximum limits

There are no dealing charges and there 1s no annual management fee Your flump sum or monthly payments will be
used to buy as many shares as possible after deducting Government Stamp Duty, currently at the rate of 0 5% On
the sale of shares a fixed charge of £15 + VAT 1s levied

Dmdends may erther be paid in cash or remnvested in the Plan Existing Majedie shareholdings may be transferred
into the Plan You may close your plan by selling all your shares at any time

For more information, a Majedie Share Plan bocklet and/or an application form please contact the Majedis Share
Plan Manager, Mgedie Portfolioc Management Limited™, Tower 42, 25 Old Broad Strest, London, EC2N 1HQ
(telephone 020 7626 1243)

* authonsed and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

Majedie Corporate ISA

The Majedie Corporate I1SA (Indmdual Savings Account) provides individuals with a tax efficient way to invest or save
in the shares of Majedie Investments PLC

ISAs provide the following benefits

- no extra Income tax payable on income generated within the 1SA,

~ no Capital Gains Tax lability on any profits ansing from within the 1SA,

- no need to iInclude the detalls of your ISA in reports to HM Revenue & Customs, and
- no mmnimum penod of nvestment

The Majedie Corperate ISA provides the additional benefit of extremely low cost There 1s no initial charge and no
annual management charge for the ISA Furthermore there 1s no brokerage charge on purchases as part of the
weekly bulk dealing for the scheme However there 13 Government Stamp Duty on purchases, currently at 0 5%,
and there 1s also an addiional charge should you wish to make use of the Real Time Dealing Service”

Shares may be purchased either by way of a lump sum payment or through regular monthly payments The
minimum lump sum investment 15 £500, while the minmum direct debit subscnption 1s £20 The maximum
investment permitted 1s currently £15,240 for the 2015/16 tax year Investments can be split between a cash ISA
and a stocks and shares ISA)

The Majedie Corporate ISA 1s provided in conjunction with Halifax Share Dealing (HSDU) who act as an HM Revenue &
Customs Approved ISA Manager To apply for an account please contact Halifax Share Dealing on 0345 850 0181

Halifax Share Dealing Limited Registered in England and Wales no 3195646 Registered Office Tnnity Road,
Halifax, West Yorkshire, HX1 2RG Authonsed and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authonty, 25 The North
Colonnade, Canary Wharf, London, E14 5HS under registration number 183332 A Member of the London Stock
Exchange and an HM Revenue & Customs Approved ISA Manager

* Please call 0345 850 G181 for further information
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Shareholder Information

Registered Office

Tower 42

25 Qld Broad Street

London EC2N 1HQ

Telephone 020 7626 1243

Fax 020 7374 4854

E-mal maedie@majedienvestments com
Registered Number 109305 England

Company Secretary & Fund Administrator
Capita Sinclar Henderson Limited

Trading as Capita Asset Services

Beaufort House

51 New North Road

Exeter £EX4 4EP

Telephone 01392 412122

Fax 01392 253282

investment Manager

Majedie Asset Management Limited
10 Oid Bailey

London EC4AM 7NG

Telephone 020 7618 3900

Emal info@majedie com

Depositary

BNY Mellon Frust & Depostary (UK) Limited
BNY Mellon Centra

160 Queen Victona Street

London EC4V 4LA

The Depositary has delegated the safe keeping of the
Company's assets to the Custodian, The Bank of New
York Mellon SA/NV, London Branch

AlIFM
Majedie Investments PLC

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bndgwater Road

Bnstol BS99 622

Telephone 0370 707 1159

Shareholders should notify all changes of name and
address in wnting to the Registrars Shareholders may
check details of ther holdings, histoncal dmdends,
graphs and other data by accessing

www computershare com

Shareholders wishing to receive communications from
the Registrars by emall (inciuding notfication of the
publication of the annual and intenm repoerts) should
register on-line at http //Awww-uk computershare com/
investor Sharehoiders will need therr shareholder
number, shown on ther share certificate and dividend
vouchers, In ordear to access both of the above servces

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP
25 Churchtl Place
Canary Wharf
London E14 5EY

Stockbrokers

Westhouse Secunties Limited
Heron Tower

110 Bishopsgate

London EG2N 4AY

ISIN

Ordinary GB0005555221

Debenture 9 5% 2020 GB0005583389
Debenture 7 25% 31/03/2025 GB0006733058

Ticker

Ordinary MAJE

Debenture 9 5% 2020 BBHK
Debenture 7 25% 31/03/2025 BD22

Sedol

Ordinary 0555522

Debenture 9 5% 2020 (0558338
Debenture 7 25% 31/03/2025 0673305
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Shareholder Information

Key Dates in 2016

Ex-dwidend date 14 January 2016
Record date 15 January 2016
Annual General Meeting 20 January 2016
2014/15 final dvmdend payable 27 January 2016
Intenm results announcement May 2016
2015/16 intenm dividend payable  June 2016
Financial year end 30 September 2016
Final results announcement December 2016
Annual Report madled to

shareholders December 2016
Website

www majedienvestments com

Share Price

The share pnce 1s quoted dally in The Times, Financial
Times, The Datly Telegraph, The Independent and
London Evening Standard Shares may be bought
through the Majedie Share Plan or Majedie Corporate
ISA (details of which are set out on page 97} You may
transfer an existing PEP or ISA to the Majedie General
ISA {page 98) You may also purchase shares through
an on-ine dealing faciity or via your stockbroker or bank

Net Asset Value

The Company announces its net asset value weekly
through the London Stock Exchange and on its
website The Financial Times publishes daily estimates
of the net asset value and discount
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Capital Gains Tax

For capital gains tax purposes the adjusted market
pnce of the Company’s shares at 31 March 1982 was
35 875p per 10p share Former sharsholders of Barlow
Holdings PLC are recommended to consuit their
professional adwisers in this regard

Warning to shareholders

Many companies are aware that ther shareholders
have received unsolicited calls or comespondence
concerning Investment matters These are typically
from overseas based brokers who target UK
shareholders offenng to sell them what often turns out
to be worthless or high nsk shares based in US or UK
nwvestments They can be very persistent and
extremely persuasive Shareholders are therefore
adwvised to be very wary of any unsolicited advice,
offers to buy shares at a discount or offers for free
company reports

Please note that it 1s very unlikely that ether the
Company or the Company's Registrar, Computershars,
would make unsolicited telephone calls to sharsholders
and that any such calis would relate only to officiat
documentation already circulated to shareholders and
never In respect of investment advice

If you are in any doubt about the veracity of an
unsolicited telephone call, please either call the
Company or the Registrar



Majedie Investments PLC

Tower 42
25 Old Broad Strest
London EC2N 1HQ

Telephone 020 7626 1243
Facsimile 020 7374 4854
E-mail majedie@majedieinvestments.com

www.majedieinvestments.com




